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Corporate Profile

VTech is one of the world’s feading consumer-focused technology companies which designs, manufactures,

markets and sells telecommunication and electronic learning products through an extensive international distribution
network. With its excellence in technology manufacturing, the Group also provides highly sought-after contract
manufacturing services. In addition to the well-known VTech brand, the Group has the rights to use the AT&T brand

in connection with the manufacture and sale of its wireline telephones and accessories for the term of the license.

Founded in 1976,VTech had revenue reached US$866.5 million in financial year 2003.The Group’s high frequency
cordless phones enjoy dominant market share in the United States while VTech brand electronic learning products
are a prominent label in the US and European markets. With a corporate culture rooted in “innovation & Technology’
the Group invested US$31.0 million in R&D in financial year 2003, and launches numerous innovative and high
quality products each year. Its customer-centric approach has cemented close relationships with leading retailers

and built brand loyalty among consumers of all ages.

With headquarters in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (Hong Kong SAR) and state-of-the-art
manufacturing facilities in mainland China,VTech currently has a presence in 10 countries and approximately 13,500
employees, including around 720 R&D professionals in R&D centres in Canada, Hong Kong SAR and mainland China.

This network allows VTech to stay abreast of the latest technology and market trends throughout the world.

Shares of VTech Holdings Limited are listed on both the Hong Kong and London stock exchanges (SEHK:303;

London SE:VTH). Ordinary shares are also available in the form of American Depository Receipts (ADRs) through

the Bank of New York (ADR: VTKHY).
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Alian WONG

Chairman

To our
Shareholders,
Customers,
Partners,

and Employees

The financial year 2003 was one of solid achievements
for VTech in its financial results. At the interim,

we reported a return to a net cash position and we built
on this achievement in the subsequent six months

to an even stronger net cash position at the end of

the financial year.
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The Group revenue has declined by 9.7%
from last year. Although sales of AT&T and
VTech branded telecommunication
products grew considerably in the financial
year 2003, the increase was insufficient to
offset the loss of ODM (Original Design
Manufacturing) business in
telecommunication products. In 2002, one
of our largest ODM customers exited the
North America telephone market and hence
these ODM sales did not recur in financial
year 2003. Lower sales at our Electronic
Learning Products (ELP) business in the
United States was another major factor
contributing to the reduction in the Group

revenue.

Despite the decrease in the Group revenue
from US$959.8 million to US$866.5 million,
operating profit improved from US$$23.0
million to US$59.5 million. Profit attributable
to shareholders stood at US$40.8 million,
which compared to last year's US$11.2

million.The 264.3% rise in profit attributable
to shareholders over previous year is
primarily due to the gain arising from the
settlement of our lawsuit against Lucent
Technologies Inc. (Lucent) of US534.0
million, improved product mix in the sales
of AT&T and VTech branded
telecommunication products, enhancing
supply chain management and
manufacturing processes.The Group also
benefited from a reduction in financing
costs as it strengthens its liquidity position.
The results were, however, adversely
affected by the less than satisfactory
performance of our ELP business in the
United States.

The Group is currently in discussions with
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
(IRD) regarding a dispute over the offshore
income claims made by certain subsidiaries
of the Group in prior years. Whilst
management considers that the subsidiaries
have grounds to support these claims, the
outcome of the dispute remains

undetermined.The directors consider it
prudent to establish a provision of US$11.0
million for the directors’best estimate of
any liabilities which may arise on settlement
of this dispute, which has been charged to
the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31st March 2003.

The continuous improvement in VTech's
financial position has led the directors to
recommend a final dividend of US2.0 cents
per ordinary share which, together with the
interim dividend already paid, brings the
full-year dividend to US3.5 cents per
ordinary share.

Steady operational cash flow has given
further support to the Group's improved
liquidity. As at 31st March 2003, the Group
had net cash of US$67.7 million, against a
net debt position of US$32.5 million at 31st
March 2002.Total interest bearing liabilities
had decreased from US5$95.8 million as at
31st March 2002 to US$2.7 million.The gross
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debt to shareholders' funds ratio stood at
2.1% compared with 107.2% for the same
period of last year.The Group has adequate
financial resources to meet its working
capital requirernents.

Good Performance from
i Telecommunication Products

| Telecommunication products were again
the mainstay of VTech's revenue in the

. financial year 2003, at US5609.8 million
accounting for 70.4% of total Group
revenue. Although this figure was 9.0%
lower than the financial year 2002 as a result
of the decrease in ODM sales, the result is
Very encouraging.

The acquisition cf the Lucent wired business
that triggered a broad-based restructuring
 of our telecommunication produxts

j business had given the opportunity to the
; Group to enhancz its operation that enabled
us to stay ahead of the industry. The

iacquisition also brought VTech a powerful

licensed brand in AT&T that allowed the
Group to cover a wider spectrum of
customers and positioned it as the category
leader of many major retailers. This in turn
0pens up 3 major source of revenue growth.

This improvement was demonstrated
during the financial year 2003 by the strong
sales performance of our AT&T and VTech
brandad products. In a market made
particularly sluggish by weak consumer
sentiment, sales of our branded
telfecommunication products increased
cansiderably, helping to maintain our
dominant share in the US cordless phones
marke:, For the financial year 2003, sales of
the 2.4GHz and 5.8GHz models, accounted
for over 50% of our telecommunication
products business revenue.,

The customer-centric strategy adopted by
the telecommunication products business
also contributed substantially to the
kusiness' operating results. During the
period under review, the business received

a number of important customer awards

for outstanding customer services, including
Sam’'s Club's “Supplier of the Year Award”
Target's"Electronics Instock Award”and BJ's
“Partnership Award”

Chalienges in the US for ELP

The ELP business continued to face severe
challenges in the US market, while
maintaining its dominance in our principal
European markets. Revenue for the financial
year 2003 decreased by 16.4% to US$161.9
million.

In the United States, the rise of certain
strong competitors had threatened the sales
of VTech products, particularly in the
pre-school and infant categories. The
popularization of personal computers,
television and hand-held games at the same
time, has eroded the size of the electronic
learning aids (ELA) segment of our ELP
business. Historically, the ELA category
accounted for over 50% of ELP revenue and
in-the financial year 2003, it only accounted
for 21.0%.




A three-
year plan...

We also recognized the need to get closer
to both the retailers which carry our
products and the consumers who purchase
them.To this end, two years ago we brought
in new management with extensive
marketing experience to develop a much
more customer-centric approach. Many
valuable lessons were learned and we are
continuing to build our strategies using the
same principles but with improved

execution.

Acknowledging the need for further
changes, we have devised a three-year
strategic plan to restore the business to its
normal level of revenue and profitability.
We will first focus on rebuilding the
profitability of the business, starting from
reorganizing the US operations.To improve
efficiency in product development, we
closed the R&D centre in Connecticut, USA
and consolidated the new product
development function completely in Hong

% profits

Kong and mainland China under the
leadership of our new senior management
team. Our product design teams in Hong
Kong and mainland China will be supported
by the up-to-date market intelligence
collected from our distribution networks in
major markets. Dedicated resources will also
be allocated to them to generate innovative
and creative product ideas and concepts.
We have full confidence that the quality of
the new product development process will
be much improved by this new
arrangement and the change in

management.

Stable Contract Manufacturing
Services (CMS)

VTech'’s ability to provide the complete
range of Electronics Manufacturing Services
(EMS) to medium-sized companies again
provided the Group with sustainable
revenue in the financial year 2003, despite
soft conditions in the worldwide EMS

market. Qur CMS business had a steady year,
with modest revenue growth of 2.0% to
US$94.7 million and a stable profit. The
business also made important
improvements during the year to its
operations, upgrading to 1S09001:2000
version, gaining TL900O certification for
telecommunication products, introducing
lead-free soldering and establishing a new
R&D centre in Shenzhen, mainland China.
All these enhancements position VTech well
for future growth opportunities,

Outlook

The macro-economic outlook for the
financial year 2004 remains highly
uncertain, with consumer sentiment in the
United States and Europe highly contingent
on a number of factors. For VTech, however,
the financial year 2004 is a year that we
look forward to further growth in revenue
and profitability.
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In telecommunication products, we have
already delivered some of the new 2.4GHz
and 5.8GHz cordless phones to sustain the
sales momentum crzated during the
financial year 2003 and capture more
market shate in the United States. A large
number of new models were introduced at
the Consumer Electronics Show (CES) in
January 2003 that wera very well received
by the industry and are expected to drive
sales and profits in the financial year 2004.
These continue the VTech tradition of
innovation and technelogy leadership,
including the TeleZapper® phenes and the
“Teen Phorie”

Our telecom munication products business
will also expand aggressively in Europe. We
are deepening the relationships we have
already established with some of the best
names in European telecommunications, to
which we zre already a key supplier.In
March 2003, we entered into an alliance
with the Swissvoice Greup, a Switzerland-

based leader in the marketing of residential
fixed line telephones in Europe. Swissvoice
will market VTech's DECT phones in various
European markets. Our aim is to raise

the preportion of the Group's
telecommunication products revenue from
Europe to 15% by 2006, around three times
the current proportion.

In a more dramatic development, in January
2003, we secured an extension to the brand
license agreement with AT&T that permits
VTecn to use the AT&T brand on data
networking products. Wireless Local Area
Networks are proliferating rapidly around
the world, as consumers seek the mobility
and convenience they offer. The global data
networking market, which is still in its early
stage is growing fast and the technology
used ir data networking devices is a
cormmorn platform with the 2.4GHz cordless
phone technology. We have leveraged our
expertise to create a product range in this
area, which will be an important new
growth driver for our telecommunication
prcducts business in longer term.

The ELP business will also turn around as

we implement our three-year strategic plan.
The immediate focus will be to rebuild
profitability. The ELP operation will be
altogether leaner and more productive in
the financial year 2004, following the actions
we have already undertaken to rationalize
the cost structure of the business. These
include allocating our advertising dollars
strategically in the financial year 2004 to
ensure that maximum impact will be
generated with fewer resources. The Hong
Kong, US and European operations were
also streamlined and reorganized to bring
the size of the structure into proportion
with the current scale of the business. As a
result, we are confident of much improved
bottom line results for the financial year
2004.

With profitability restored at our ELP
business, we expect to achieve solid revenue
growth in the financial year 2005 and
beyond, as new products come on stream.
A completely revamped product range for
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the calendar year 2004 is being developed,
based on the marketing skills we have
gained over the past three years with our
deep reservoir of product development
expertise in Hong Kong. We are also
exploring entirely new product categories.

During the financial year 2004, we have a
range of 16 different electronic learning
products ready to test the longer-term
China market. These products cover our
three major categories, namely electronic
infant toys, electronic pre-school toys and
ELA.They are designed to appeal to the
children aged 6 months to 11 years old and
will initially be sold in the Pearl River Delta
area in the mainiand China.

CMS, meanwhile, is expected to continue
to make a solid contribution to the Group's
results, and benefit from the need of more
companies to outsource. The scope of our
product design service will be expanded

and we plan to enter more segments of the

market by attaining Q59000 and 15013488
certifications, which will give us entry to

the production of parts for the automotive
and equipment for the medical sectors
respectively.

To strive for greater efficiency and enhanced
performance, we have launched a balanced
scorecard project on a global basis. With
this new management system, we are able
to integrate the Group's overall strategies
into operations and raise the Group's
performance to a higher level.

Depending on the resitience of consumer
demand in all major markets, we expect
steady growth in revenues and recurrent
profits in the financial year 2004. Over the
next three years, however, as the new
initiatives come to fruition, we expect to
return to a more rapid and broadly based
growth path, producing much stronger
financial results that will enable us to reward
our shareholders more fully for their
supports during the past few years.
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Appreciation

Last but not the least,| would like to thank
my fellow directors and senior
management, as well as all VTech employees
for their continued commitment to ensuring
continued improvement for the Group.
Likewise, my thanks go out to our bankers
and business partners for their invaluable
supports.

P

Allan WONG Chi Yun

Chairman
Hong Kong, 25th June 2003
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All of these products reflect the 20-year heritage of YTech
in ELP.We develop our products to be both educational
and fun, applying advanced technology to make them as
interactive as possible. In doing so, we ensure a range of
designs to meet the learning needs of children of
different age categories.
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Qur strong focus on education with Chinese contents is
especially suited to mainland China, where tradition and
the policy of encouraging one child per family lead to a
great emphasis on children’s education.VTech has strang
brand equity in global markets and in mainland China and
there is currently no dominant brand for educational
1€l is to tid products. We are therefore confident that VTech has a
Delta area in lal \ge depants 1 \ strong competitive advantage to maximize the
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During the financial year 2003, as CEO, my main task was
to execute the strategy formulated and approved by the
Board of Directors and | am pleased to report that
important progress has been made in achieving the
targets set out by the Board.

The Group continues the focus on its three core
businesses and most of the non-core businesses had been
either scaled down or divested. In addition, the Group
successfully sold property assets in Hong Kong which
helped us to minimize the capital assets on our balance
sheet.We also made some necessary management
changes across the Group to ensure a lean and effective
cost structure in all business units.

In the coming financial year, | will continue to execute the
Board's strategy, paying particular attention to driving
down costs and improving supply chain management, to
raise our competitiveness and achieve greater customer
satisfaction. A new Chief Information Officer has already
been appointed to {ead the Group's IT initiatives.

rnow do we Increase
shareholders’ values?

A system of

)

AN

What must
we excel at?

In addition, in line with our strategy of increasing
management accountability, in April 2003 we launched a
new “balanced scorecard” management system. As we
implement this across the Group in calendar year 2003, it
will help build an open corporate culture through the
internal sharing of knowledge and information, creating a
system of corporate accountability that will allow us to
attract and retain the talents the Group needs to achieve
future growth,

Paddy LAW Wai Leung
Group Chief Executive Officer

Annual Report 2003
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. Hmproven"em of net profit to

"RISULTS OVERVIEW
..Fo:the vear ended 31st March 2003

US$4U 8 ﬂl“mﬂ _All figurzs arg in US$ million except those stated otherwise 2003 2002
"+ Increased operatung‘profut Revenue T 866.5 959.8
B ! !
(excluding lawsuit settlement) Qaerating profit 59.5 230
by 10.9% Prefit attributable to shareholders 40.8 11.2
¢ NEt C&Sh O‘ﬁ US$6’77 mlﬂmn No-recurring:items affecting net results
o T@taﬂ d'ﬂvﬁdend Of U53-5 cents pelr — Gain on settlement of a lawsuit 34.0 —
. - — Tax provision for prior years under dispute {11.0) —
share
Basic earnings per share (in US cents) 18.1 5.0
D:vidend per share (in US cents)
— Interim 1.5 Nil
— Final 2.0 Nil
C <L LIRS SR |1 e 10401 |

. REVENUE The;Gﬂr‘ouprevlelj‘qe for the year

. ended 31st March 2003 was US5866.5

" million, which répresein‘ted‘a drop of 9.7%
from that of last year.The decline was mainly

attributable to the loss of ODM business of
telecommunication products in this
financial year, despite the substantial

© growth of sales of AT&T ard VTech branded

- products in thZsame penod Lower sales at

" the ELP business in the US market was

" another major factor contributing to the
reduction in the Group revenue.

' Telecommunication products accounted for

70.4% of total Group revenue to US$609.8

million for the yéar ended 31st March 2003.

" As compared with last year, revenue
declined 9.0% mainly because of the

" decrease in saies from ODM business. One

© major customer exitec the North America

" telephone market in 2002, with the result

" that this revenue did not recur in the

. financial year 2003. However, the sales

. performances of AT&T and VTech branded
phones were strong, especially in higher

" margin 2.4GHz and 5.8GHz cordless phones

" as consumers responded ‘w‘ell to our new

. range of products The sales of the AT&T

~and VTech brajded prpdq;,ts grew

. considerably in the period,under review

and captured-a dominant share ir the US
market. Currently, we are the targest player

t

‘ VTech Holdings i.td
. Ol

.in the cordless phone market in the United

States.

In the financial year 2003, the improved
product mix, i.e. shifting from 900MHz to
2.4GHz cordless phones, enabled the
business to enjoy better margin and higher
average selling price (ASP) as compared to
the financial year 2002, Sales derived from
our ODM business in the financial year 2003

“accounted for less than 5% of total

telfecommunication products revenue,
which is significantly lower than the
proportion of this revenue in the last
financial year.

(USS_m‘.I‘“.Ii)TI‘)

USS million

1,500 1,334.9
M
1,200 1,045.9
06 [ 959.8
—  866.5
900
600
300
99 00 01 02 03

O Telecommunication products 609.8
O Electronic learning products 161.9
O Contract manufacturing services 94.7
O Other businesses 0.1

(O North America 680.3
(O Europe 1495
O Asia Pacific 292
@ Others 75




Geographically, North America remained as
the major market for telecommunication
products, accounting for 93.3% of total
telecommunication products revenue in the
financial year 2003, as compared to 95.0%
in the financial year 2002,

Revenue of the ELP business decreased by
16.4% to US$161.9 million. The ELP business
faced severe challenges in the US market
due to rapid expansion of major
competitors in the pre-school and infant
categories. Competition from personal
computers, TV and hand-held games also
posted a challenge to the ELA category.
Reduction in the shelf space offered by
leading custemers put additional pressure
on the business.VTech, however, maintained
its leadership in principal European markets,
which accounted for 54.4% of the total
revenue of the ELP business in the financial
year 2003 as compared to 49.1% in the
financial year 2002. Building on the
innovative ability of our R&D teams in Hong
Kong and mainland China, management
decided to close the R&D centre in

G North America 569.0
O Europe 29.2
O Aasia Pacific 76
O Others 4.0

Connecticut, USA and shift the R&D function
to Hong Kong and mainfand China under
the leadership of the new management
team that was putin place in late 2002.This
will both lower the operational costs and
improve the Group's ability to develop
praducts that are better accepted by
consumers.

GROSS PROFIT Despite the decrease in
revenue, the gross profit of the Group was
comparable to the last financial year. The
gross profit margin for the year improved
from 29.9% to 33.4%.The increase was

mainly attributable to the Group’s strategy
of focusing on higher margin products in
the telecommunication products business.
Enhancement in supply chain management
and manufacturing processes, leveraging

O North America 64.1
O Europe 88.0
O Aasia Pacific 6.3
O Others 35

The CMS business continued to provide a
reliable source of cash flow to the Group,
as the strategy of providing a complete
range of EMS services to medium-sized
companies continued to prove successful.
Despite an overall decline in the EMS market
worldwide, the business recorded modest
revenue growth of 2.0% to US$94.7 million,
while profits remained stab'e.

the Group’'s volume advantage in
purchasing to reduce materials costs, as well
as improvement in product design to lower
costs also contributed to the improvement
in gross profit margin.

OPERATING PROFIT The operating profit
improved from US5$23.0 million to US559.5
million. Current year’s operating profit
included a non-recurring gain on settlement
of a lawsuit amounted to US$34.0 million.

Excluding such gain, operating profit
increased from US$23.0 million to US$25.5
million. Offsetting the effect of less than
satisfactory performance of ELP business in
the United States, the strong sales of
branded telecommunication products in
both AT&T and VTech brands and the solid
performance of the CMS business
contributed to the increase in the Group's
operating profit.

Indriving product acceptance and sales of
ELP products in the second half of financial
year 2003, the Group launched aggressive

marketing and sales campaigns. This
resulted in a disproportionate increase in
spending on advertising and promotion
dollars, which resulted in a substantial
increase in the Group's selling expenses
compared to the last financial year. This was
only partly offset by savings from higher
efficiency in logistics and improved supply
chain management, which considerably
lowered the Group’s distribution expenses.

Staff costs for the year ended 31st March
2003 was approximately US$90 million. Total
number of employees as at year-end
decreased from 14,251 10 13,560.

Notwithstanding the decrease in revenue, the
Group maintained the normal level of
investment in R&D, which represented
approximately 3% to 4% of the Group revenue.

USS million

60 54.1

A

40 35.2

30

20

99 00 01 a2 03

Annual Report 2003




" GAIN ON SETTLEMENT OF A LAWSUIT On 25th

January 2001, the Group filed a complaint

- against Lucent Technologies Inc. (Lucent)
and Lucent Technologies Consumer

_ Products, L.P.in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of the New

; York seeking damages and related relief

arising out of the acquisition by the Group
of Lucent's Wired Consumer Products
Business in 2000.

Group against Lucent in January 2001 in a
mutually satisfactory manner.The net
receipt from the settlement amounted to

US$34.0 million, after deducting incidental

As disclosed in Note 3 to the financial
statements, cn 7th June 2002, the Group

and Lucent settled the lawsuit filed by the statement.

 R—— —— ] | e—— 1 | w—|

expenses, has been fully settled and was
credited to the consolidated income

010 oocaos

- NET PROFIT AND DIVIDENTS The Group's profit

attributable to shareholders for the year

" was US$40.8 rmillion as compared to

- US$11.2 million last year. Interest expenses

" decreased from US$11.6 million to US$2.2

" million as a resuit of substantial repayment
of bank borrowings during the year.

The Group is currently in discussions with
" the Hong Kong IRD rega. ding a dispute over
"the offshore income claims made by certain
“subsidiaries of the Grotp ifi prior years.
~Whilst management considers that the

subsidiaries hzve grounds to support these
claims, the outcome of the dispute remains

undetermined.The directors consider it
“prudent to establish a provision for the
~directors' best estimate of any liabilities
. which may arise on settlement of this
dispute. Accordingly, a provision of US$11.0
million has becr charged to the
“consolidated income statement for the year
.ended 31st March 2003.

2 30 [ S— JHof
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Earnings per share for the year were US18.1
cents as compared to US5.0 cents for last
year. balance sheet date.
Aninterim dividend of US$3.4 million (US1.5
cents per share) for the financial year 2003
had been approved and paid.The directors

32.0%.

proposed a final dividend of US$4.5 million
(US2.0 cents per share) be paid after the

Return on equity improved from 12.5% to

B 59000 | g o —

WORKING CAPITAL The stock balance as at
-31st March 2003 decreased 11.0% to
US$84.0 million. The reduction resulted from
‘management’s effort to improve stock
}management and supply chain
-management. Group stock turnover days,
“however, increased from 60 days last year
-to 63 days for the financiai year 2003,
:Despite management’s efforts to improve

working capital, the less than satisfactory
{ELP products zcceptance among the US
‘consumers caused stock turnover days to

increase.

12 VTech Holdings Ltd'
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Tha debtor ba ance as at 31st March 2003
decreased 4.6% to US$123.0 million. Debtor
turnover days improved from 76 days to

WORKING CAPITAL
As at 31st March 2003

71 days owing to continuous efforts to
tighten debt collection and credit contral.

All figures are in US$ mitlion except those stated otherwise 2003 2002
Stocks ' 84.0 94.4
Average stocks as a percentage of Group revenue 10.3% 14.7%
Turnover days 63 days 60 days
Debtors 123.0 1289
Average debtors a5 a percentage of Group revenue 14.5% 16.9%
Turnover days 71 days 76 days
Net assets 127.5 89.4
Net assets per saare {in US cents) 56.5¢ 39.6¢




Management Discussion arnd Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES The LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
s . . . As at 31st March 2003

Group’s financial position continued to All figures are in US$ million except those stated otherwise 2003 2002
improve. As at 31st March 2003, the Group

s Cash 70.4 633
had net cash of US$67.7 million compared
with net debt of US$32.5 million as at Less: Total interest bearing liabifities (2.7) (95.8)
31st March 2002. Net cash inflow from Net cash/ (debt} position 67.7 (32.5)
operating activities during the year

Gross debt to shareholders' funds 2.1% 107.2%

amounted to US$110.6 million,
representing a decrease of US$36.2 million Net debt to shareholders' funds N/A 36.4%
over last year's US$146.8 million. The net

receipt from settlement of the lawsuit filed

) _ o compared to 72.9% at 31st March 2002. of the borrowings is secured against land
against Lucent contributed US$34.0 million Lo , . . :
 cash to the G A majority of the Group's borrowings are and buildings, which amounts to
ot cash to the Group. denominated in Euro and are on a fixed approximately US$2.5 million.
rate basis.

Total interest bearing liabilities decreased

o With cash on hand and available banking
from US$95.8 million at 31st March 2002

US62.7 mill he end of the fi " Of the amount of indebtness as at 31st facilities at the year ended 31st March
to -/ million at the end of the financia March 2003, US$0.5 million was repayable 2003, the Group has adequate financial
year 2003.The gross debt to shareholders’ - ) - . . :
o within one year; US50.5 million was resources to meet its future working capital
funds ratio improved from 107.2% to 2.1%. : )
, repayable between one and two years; requirements. Approximately 80% of cash
Long-term borrowings decreased from o , , . ‘
US565.2 mill U822 mill hich US$0.7 million was repayable between two  and deposits are denominated in United
' mx) I;; tof hs .h le 'O,nf'wd'c and five years and US$1.0 million was States dollars and 10% are danominated
represents 1./7% of sharenclders funds as repayable after five years. A small portion in United Kingdom Sterling and Euro.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE During the year, the TREASURY POLICIES The objective of the foreign exchange contracts and interest rate
Group invested US$14.1 million in plant, Group's treasury policies is to manage its swaps were used to hedge certain
machinery, equipment and other tangible exposure to fluctuation in foreign currency ~ exposures.
assets. This was financed primarily from exchange rates and interest rates on its
internal resources. interest bearing loans. It is our policy not

to engage in speculative activities. Forward

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS On 7th June After settling its claims against Lucent, Certain subsidiaries of the Group are
2002, the Group and Lucent settled the the Group commenced litigation against involved in litigation arising from their
lawsuit filed by the Group against Lucent PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“"PwC") on normal business. None of the above

in January 2001 in a mutually satisfactory 28th February 2003 in relation to Pw(C's proceedings are regarded as material
manner.There was no admission of alleged malpractice and breach of duty litigation.

wrongdoing by either party. Under the and fraud in representing the Group

terms of the settlement, Lucent has agreed concerning the acquisition of part of the

to adjust the purchase price of the Lucent Consumer Telephone Business in

acquisition downward by US$50.0 million,  March 2000.
such amount has been fully settled in cash.

EMPLOYEES As at 31st March 2003, the NUMBER OF&MPL}?VEES

. Asat 315t 2003 2003 2002
Group had approximately 13,500 ersl e
employees. The Group has established an Manufacturing 12,113 12,739
incentive bonus scheme and a share option  \on.manufacturing 1,447 1512

scheme for its employees, in which the
benefits are determined based on the

perfarmance of the Group and individual Average for the year 15,600 16,104
employees.

Total employees at the end of the year 13,560 14,251




b Vo1 A

il

The tele-
communication
products business
raported strong

A growth in profits
on the back of higher sales of AT&T
and VTech branded models and

a shift in the preduct mix from

- 900MHz to 2.4GHz and 5.8GHz

- cordiess telephones. This

achievement testifies to the
dedication of the divicion’s
employees and the suzcess of the
customer-centric strategy that is

- now the corner stone of all

. operations.

James C.KRALIX
Chief Executive Officer,
Telecommunicaticn Products Business

VTech Holdings Lid

While sales of the AT&T and VTech branded
products increased considerably during the
financial year 2003, total revenue for the
business declined by 9.0% to US$609.8
million.This was primarily driven by the
lower volume of ODM business as one of
our large ODM customers exited the North
America telephone market in 2002.

[1 North America, our new range of 2.4GHz
znalog and digital phones, in particular our
AT&T branded phones, was well received by
our cuszomers and end consumers. This
strong sales momentum was sustained by
the delivery of the world's first 5.8GHz
cordless phone in August 2002 which
reaffirmed VTech's position in the industry
as not only one of the largest suppliers of
cordless phones in the United States, but
also the global leader in cordless phone
technology. As a result, VTech's overall
market share in North America continued
to increase.

The sustained shift from 900MHz cordless
models to 2.4GHz and 5.8GHz cordless
models also resulted in higher average
selling prices and margins. During the course
of the year, we were also able to lower the
cost of components, following

Telecommunication
oroaucts

improvements to product design and an
improved procurement process that has
successfully leveraged our economies of
scale in purchasing. Enhanced efficiencies
in manufacturing by the implementation
of a cell-based manufacturing process also
contributed significantly to our improved
profitability.

At the same time, our customer-centric
strategy continued to be at the core of all
our business activities. A collaborative
planning, forecasting and replenishment
(CPFR) model was implemented, which
feeds weekly point-of-sale data directly into
our production planning process. This has
enabled us to reduce inventory levels and
working capital further. It has also helped
us to increase the quality and level of service
we offer customers, something that has
been recognized by a number of important
awards, including Sam’s Club’s “Supplier of
the Year Award’ Target's “Electronics Instock
Award’ and BJ's "Partnership Award"

Qutlook

We are cautiously optimistic about
achieving both revenue and profit growth
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during the financial year 2004, though much
will depend on overall economic conditions
and consumer sentiment, particularly in the
United States, our largest market. We expect
that competitive pressures, especially with
regard to product pricing, will remain strong
and our largest competitors begin to supply
5.8GHz products to the market. According
to data of the first quarter of calendar year
2003 refeased by NPD, Market Intelligence,
however, the total cordless market in the
United States will experience moderate
growth in both units and revenue in the
calendar years 2003 and 2004. Having both
the AT&T and VTech brands, the Group is
well positioned to benefit from this organic
growth and to capture market share from
higher end segments of this market.

In April 2003, VTech launched a new range
of AT&T and VTech cordless phones that
have received enthusiastic support from
our retail partners.In addition to new
2.4GHz and 5.8GHz cordless phones, the
“Teen Phone’ a cordless phone designed
specifically for the teenage market with
programmable ringer tones and removable
faceplates, has created particular excitement
in the marketplace. Initial point of sales data
for the “Teen Phone” are encouraging.

Our customer-centric strategy continues to
position VTech well to win additional market
share in a competitive environment.The
comprehensive product range we offer
under two different brand names and our
track record of technology leadership
enable us to gain acceptance for additional

i -
— EXCiting

= new product
!:; range

and VTecnh
Oroaucts

you want it. As advanced as you make it.

Review of Qperations

products as retailers continue to rationalize
the number of suppliers and the variety of
products they carry. At the same time,
continued improvements managing our
supply chain will reinforce the attraction of
VTech as a key supplier,and in some cases,
telephone category manager.

Ancther growth area for the financial year
2004 will be the European market.The size
of the overall European cordless phone
market is approximately two-thirds of the
US residential phone market. Since our
European sales accounted for around 5% of
the telecommunication products revenue
in the financial year 2003, we see enormous
potential for VTech in this market over the
medium term and have set a target of
raising the proportion of sales from Europe
to 15% by 2006.

To achieve this, we will deepen the
relationships we enjoy with some of the
best names in European
telecommunications, to which we are
already a key supplier. The Group will also
invest more in the research and
development of products specifically for
the European market and work to build our
alliance with Swissvoice Group, which will
market VTech’s DECT phones in a number
of European countries.

in addition to growth through geographical
expansion, we intend over the medium term
to drive revenue by entering the data
networking market. This is one of the fastest
growing product categories in
communications and the global market is

expected to reach US$3.0 billion by the
calendar year 2005.

In January 2003, we secured an extension
to our AT&T brand license that permits
VTech to use the AT&T brand on data
networking products. With its technical
expertise and distribution presence, VTech
isin a unique competitive position to take
the lead in this fast growing segment, which
will only expand further as voice and data
converge. We have created a unigue identity
for these products, using the "Plug and
Share™” concept to offer high quality and
easy to use products. An initial range of
products will be delivered in the second
quarter of the financial year 2004 and we
believe the combination of VTech'’s
technology platform with the highly
respected AT&T brand, will make us a
powerful competitor in this exciting new
market.
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Financial year
2003 has been a
tough year for our
ELP business, as
our products
faced major challenges in the United
States. Although we have heen able
to maintain our deminance in
Europe, where VTech remains a
leader in many categories, both
revenue and profitability of our ELP
business inevitably declined.

Edwin YING Lin Kwan
Chief Executive Officer,
Electronic Learning Products Business

VVTech Holdinas | td

Fevenue for the financial year 2003 fell by
16.4% to US5161.9 million, primarily as a
result of a decline in sales in the United
States.

The main factors attributable to the decline
in sales in the United States are set out
fallows:

s The size of the ELA market has been
eroded due to the popularization of
personal computers. Children between
age of 8 and 11 are switching to PCs,
television games and hand-held games
for fun and education. Accordingly the
need for ELA products has reduced.
Historically ELA accounted for over 50%
of our revenue sources but for the
financial year 2003 it only accounted for
21.0% of our revenue.

® The rise of certain strong competitors in
the Unitad States had threatened the
sales of YTech products, particularly in
the pre-school and infant categories.
These competitors are strong and gain
certain expansion momentum.

® in an effort to combat the threats of
competitors, in late 2001, VTech looked
into the development of certain
innavative and strategic product items,
namely the Voyager Adventure Systems,
Smarty’s Workshops and the XL Series,

Reﬁil
profitability

ding

Electronic Learning
Products

which were headed by the product
development team located in
Connecticut, USA. Innovative ideas and
play concepts were put into the design
of the products and, as a result, they
were well received by the trade during
the preview at the New York Toy Fair in
early 2002. Significant sales orders flew
through from our key customers.in order
to capitalize the products’early success,
more than proportionate advertising
dollars were committed to promote and
market these products. Finally in August
2002, when these products were shipped
and put on the shelf of our customers,
the feedback from our consumers had
not been satisfactory. Inventories had
been built up at the warehouse of our
customers and the less than satisfactory
sell-through had caused some of our key
customers to cancel their orders.
Management has thoroughly studied
the lessons learned in this situation and
appropriate measures had been put in
place to avoid similar events from
recurring in the future.

The combination of the above factors had
led to a significant decrease in sales in the
US market, a reduction of 28.4% to U5560.4
million.




In Europe, by contrast, VTech had been able
to sustain a comparable revenue level as
last year.Revenue in Europe for the financial
year 2003 stood at US$88.0 million,
representing a decline of 7.5% from last
year.In this market, VTech has a greater
competitive advantage by virtue of its well-
established distribution network and
expertise in developing products in many
different languages. Despite keen
competition in the key European markets,
VTech has been able to maintain a dominant
role in many ELP categories.

Profitability of the ELP business was
significantly affected by lower sales volume
in the United States. A disproportionate rise
in sales and marketing expenses in that
market, where major marketing campaigns
were launched in support of the brand
image and strategic new products, was
unable to generate expected results in sales
due to unsatisfactary execution, further
eroded the margin.

Qutleck

In the financial year 2004, ELP wiil begin
aggressively ta tackle the issues at the
business, especially as regards the US
market.

A three-year strategic plan has been devised
to restore the operation to its normal levels
of revenues and profitability, under the
direction of the new management of
seasoned VTech executives that was put in
place in late 2002,

The results of this initiative will not be
immediate and we therefore do not
anticipate any improvement in revenue in

neview o1 uperauons

the financial year 2004. However, the focus

will be on the rebuilding of ELP’s

profitability. We intend to improve the
profitability of the ELP operation through

a series of important measures, some of

which have already been started.These are:

* Reorganized and streamlined Hong
Kong, US and European operations in
order to bring the size of the structure
into proportion with the current scale
of business;

® (Closed the R&D centre in Connecticut,
USA and consolidated the R&D activities
to the R&D centres in Hong Kong and
mainland China;

e Strategically allocate our advertising
dollars to ensure that maximum impact
will be generated with fewer resources,
e.g. trade advertising; and

o In the product development perspective,
we will focus on generating innovative
and creative product ideas and concepts.
Dedicated resources will be allocated to
our product design teams in Hong Kong
and mainland China. With up-to-date
market intelligence collected from our
distribution networks in major markets,
our product design professionals will be
able to generate product concepts and
ideas that are most appropriate to the
market and accepted by the consumers.

With profitability restored in the financial
year 2004, we will shift our main focuses to
driving sales, growing revenues and further
profitability growth in the financial year
2005 and beyond.We have begun to revamp
completely the product line and to explore
entirely new product categories. The core
of this longer-term growth strategy will be
to integrate our technology innovation,
product development and marketing

expertise in our product devalopment
processes. This will ensure new products
are appropriate to the market and successful
with consumers.

We also intend to leverage our competitive
strength in developing products with
different languages to expand our business
geographically. We have begun to examine
opportunities in Latin America and other
emerging markets. We are also looking at
mainland China, which is clearly a market
of great potential in the longer term. During
the financial year 2004, we wil' have a range
of 16 different ELP products ready to test
the China market. These products cover our
three major categories, namely electronic
infant toys, electronic pre-school toys and
electronic learning aids. They are designed
to appeal to the children aged 6 months to
11 years old and will initially be sold in the
Pear| River Delta area in mainland China.
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The Contract
Manufacturing
Services (CMS)
business had
L S| another solid
year, with revenue increasing by
2.0% over 2302 to US$94.7 miliion
and stable profit. This was a
significant performance against
the overall EMS market.

Andy LEUNG F»n Kwong
Chief Executive Cfficer,
Contract Manufacturing Services Business

VTech Holdings Ltd
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According tc the new study from
Technelogy Forecasters on 20th June 2003,
the EMS incustry recorded a 9% decline in
revenues in the calendar year 2002. Our
results were also well ahead of our
immediate peer groups in Hong Kong
where revenue was reported to have fallen
by 12% over the same period.

VTech’s ability to produce consistently
sound results partly reflects the success of
our strategy of providing quality service to
medium-sized customers, and to expand
through organic growth, only adding
capacity when assured of sustained market
demand. Currently, telecommunication and
professional audio products are the largest
categories we produce.

In acdition, our excellent service levels
enabled us not only to retain all existing

Excellent
services

Contract
Manutfacturing
Services

customers, but also to acquire new ones.
VTech offers the solid basics of price, quality
and delivery to its customers. Beyond these
we provide with 24 hours-a-day access to
customer service teams, overtime work to
complete orders quickly and a very high
degree of flexibility in accommodating
changes after orders are placed.

Customers also began to benefit from our
new DFX (Design For X) Programme. The
success of our New Product Introduction
(NPI) teams in providing superior service in
the area of new product development led
to the launch of this program, in which we
“design for” various customer parameters,
such as cost or quality, helping to improve
particular aspects of existing products. We
also carried through on enhancements to
our processes introduced in the financial
year 2002, such as implementing iead-free
soldering for our more environmentally
concerned customers.
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Another important factor supporting
customer retention was VTech’s ability to
generate cost savings. We held operating
costs in check, while using our economies
of scale to negotiate improved materials
prices, which account for over 75% of total
costs. We passed the majority of these
savings on to customers, further cementing
the strong relationships we have.

Outlook

Market observers forecast modest growth
in the EMS market in the calendar year 2003.
We regard this as optimistic.The world
economy is still weak and our forecast is for
little growth in the overall market.

VTech nevertheless aims to increase CMS
business volumes in the financial year 2004.
A Vice President of business development
has been recruited to spearhead various
initiatives, including leveraging the
extensive relationships of our material
suppliers to further expand our customer

The scope of our product design service
will be expanded. The new design centre in
Shenzhen, PRC, has fully established itself
and is now able to take initial concepts to
a design stage, adding an important
dimension to the CMS business.

We also plan to enter more segments of the
market. Having gained TL900O certificate
for telecommunication products in August
2002, we intend by July 2003 to attain
Q59000 and 1SO713488 certifications, which
will give us entry to the production of
automotive parts and medical equipment
respectively.

While expanding our revenue, we will also
seek to contain or further reduce costs.
Material prices are not expected to rise in
the foreseeable future, given the weak state
of the global economy, and we plan to
sgueeze more cost from the supply chain
by shortening manufacturing cycle times.
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Year in Review

APE

VTech Telecommunications Ltd
announced agreement with a
leading provider of giobal
supply management 1GSM)
solutions to select ore of its
services as a platform for
sourcing rmaterials and services
forjits operations.

Andy LEUNG was promoted
to CEO of the Contract
Manufacturing Services
business.

|

Sept m

Our Contract Manufacturing
Services business was ranked
one :ofthe top 100 coniract
manufacturing service providers
for the year 2001.The ranking
was published by the magazine
“Electronics Business"in the top
Contiract Manufacturers Issue.

Knig“hts of Knowledge was
named one of the Dr.Toy's
“Best 100 Children’s Products
for 2’002’.’

!
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M @y 2002

VTech Corporate Services Lid
attaired the ISC9001: 2000
certification and got“z2ro
defect” for its f nal result.

P

DEBD TETT S senm

me 2002

VTech announced its financial
year 2002 annual results,
showing strong profit rebound
and a marked improvement in
the balance sheet.

To further enhance the Group's
corporate governance system,
Chairman and Group CEO Allan
WONG appointed Paddy LAW 1o
take over his role as Group CEQ,
while Allan remains as
Chairman.

VTech reached a mutually
satisfactory settlement with
Lucent Technologies Inc.
{Lucent) refating to a dispute
arising from the acquisition by
the Group of Lucent's Wired
Consumer Products Business in
2000. Under the terms of the
settlement, Lucent has agreed to
adjust the purchase price of the
acquisition downward by
US$50.0 million,

08

0t

YT2418 2.4GHz cordless phone
was awarded the Good Design
Award 2002 by Japan Industrial

Design Promotion Orgarization.

1Q HA HA was horioured the
Certificate of Merit in Consumer
Froduct Design in 2002 by the
Federation of Horg Kong
Industries.

Sixteen-year Viech veterar
Edwin YING was aopointed the
new CEQ of the Electronic
Learning Producis business
replacing Dennis Perry.

NOV s

VTech announced its financial
year 2003 interim results,
returning to net cash position.

Smarty’s Workshop was named
“Toy of the Year”in the category
of “Play Imitation” by the toy
magazine named“La Revue du
Jouet”in France.

VTech Electronics Europe Plc
was named the "Best High

Tech/Software Company” for
the year 2002 by the readers of
Right Start Magazine in the UK.

Dec um

VTech Telecommunications Ltd
was awarded the 2002
Customer Award from Philips
Semiconductor.

VTech Telecommunications Ltd
upgraded the 1509001 10 2000
version and attained the TLS000
certification.




J M 2002

Qur Contract
Manufacturing Services
launched the lead-free
soldering process to act
proactively in the area of
environmental protection
during its manufacturing
process,

VTech published the first
edition of online quarterly
newsletter to highlight

the latest news and
developments of the Group
for the investment
community.

Our Contract Manufacturing

Services was given the “Excellent

Commitment and Partnership
Award” by Aloka Co,, Ltd, to
recognize our outstanding
services offered to the
customers.

A new range of 2.4GHz and
5.8GHz models with significant
advancements was introduced
in conjunction with the annual
Consumer Electronics Show in
Las Vegas, the United States.
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AM g 2002

Our Contract Manufacturing
Services upgraded its
1SO9001: 1994 certification

to 1SO9001: 2000 version,

It also gained TL900O
certification, recognizing

the Group's capabilities in
manufacturing quality
telecommunication products.

ISdal 1l MTVIEVV

VTech delivered the industry’s
first 5.8GHz cardless phone,
VTech 5831 - the only cordless
telephone to operate using the
newly available 5.8GHz
technology platform.

VTech Electronics Ltd was
recognized for its commitment
to product safety in the

Toys "R”Us Safety Assurance
Programs in 2001 and attained
a Certificate of Achievernent.

VTech's panel of judges selected
31 first-ever XLence Award
winners, The Grand Prize
Winner was 10-year-old Kaitlyn
Wrieden from La Mesa,
California, who received a
US$25,000 scholarship.

Ralph Eric TISCHLER,
Engineering Manager at VTech
Telecommunications Canada
Ltd, received the 2002
Chairman’s Award, which is one
of the highest honors VTech
presents to the employees.
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F@b 2003

VTech Chairman Ajlan WONG
participated in the Standard
Chartered Hong Kong Marathon
along with 27 VTech colleagues
in Hong Kong.

VTech participated in the Toy
Fair at Nuremburg, Germany.
Around 40 editors came to see
the new products during the
VIP show and at the booth.

VTech appointed KPMG as its
new auditors, replacing
PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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VTech announced a strategic
alliance with Swissvoice Group
at CeBIT 2003. Swissvoice Group
agreed to market VTech cordless
DECT phones in a number of
European countries on an
exclusive basis.

VTech participated in the CeBIT
at Hannover, Germany, the most
widely known IC trade fair
worldwide, ta introduce our
advanced DECT phone to
customers.

VTech successfully launched the
Balanced Scorecard program on a
global basis, designed to help the
Group translate strategy into
operational objectives, driving
both behaviour and action.

Annua! Report 2003 |21




. v
mong .ong vlaratnen 2003 L/

=Bt B

G600y L

Investor Reletions

The Group is committed to continuously
improving its standard of corporate
governance and ensuring that full, timely
and equitable information are disclosed to
its shareholders and investors. In recent
years, additicnal efforts were devoted to
the building of investor relationships in all
major market places, i.e. Hong Kong, Asia,
Eurcpe and the United States.

INVESTOR BRIEFINGS During the financial
year 2003, VTech held over 50 one-on-one
meetings with investors to keep them
abreast of the latest Company's
developments. In addition, we organized
site visits to our advanced manufacturing
facilities in mainland China. Seriior
management also participated in various
investor conferences in Hong Keng and
Shanghai, mainland China.

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT WEBCAST
Beginning with the financial year 2003
interim resutts announcement, VTech began
webcasting its key financial
announcements, allowing investors not
present in Horg Kong to watch the event,
accompanied by the detailed slide
presentations,

QUARTERLY NEWSLETTER 1 July 2002, the
Group began to issue a quarterly newsletter
to investors i~ order to keep them informed
of VTech's latest developments,

VTech Holdings Ltd

INVESTOR SURVEY [n February 2003, VTech
conductad a brief survey (via its investor
relations’ advisors) on the perceptions of
buy and sell-side analysts, to ascertain their
views on the Company regarding its
prospects and its investor communications.
The information was used to improve the
level of service that the Group provides to
the investment community and confirmed
the usafulness of initiatives such as the
webcast and quarterly newsletter,

INVESTOR RELATIONS WEBSITE For all
investors, the corporate website www.vtech.
com provides up-to-date investor
informaticn, including press releases, stock
exchange announcements and “pdf”
versions of the annual and interim reports.

Employee Relations

The peopla who work at VTech have
consistently demonstrated loyalty and
enthusiasm to the Group both in periods
of growth and during times of chzllenge.
Particularly in the context of the outbreak
of SARS, which had the potential to deal a
severe blow to corporate morale, we took
areat care to ensure positive attitude was
maintained at every level, from our factory
floor through senior management.

MAINTAINING A SARS FREE WORKPLACE

VTech attaches great importance to the
health of its employees and accordingly
respanded quickly to the SARS outbreak to
ensure that risks to its employees, especially
those in mainland China and Hong Kong
were minimized.

The Company set up a SARS committee to
formulate precautionary measures and
business contingency plan in response to
the potential threat to the organization. We
followed strictly the guidelines issued by
the Department of Health in Hong Kong to
prevent exposure and potential infections.
Among the many measures adopted, VTech
ensured all employees understood the
required standards of personal hygiene and
provided face masks to all employees in
Hong Kong and mainland China. Initiatives
were taken to ensure a clean working
environment at all our facilities, including
increasing ventilation and regular
disinfection. Thanks to the implementation
of these precautionary measures, as at 25th
June 2003, no VTech employee had
contracted the virus.

RUNNING TOGETHER In February 2003,
Chairman Allan WONG participated in the
Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon
along with 27 VTech colleagues. Events such
as these strengthen the shared sense of
purpose among management and
employees.




CHAIRMAN'S AWARD VTech gives a
Chairman'’s Award for an employee who has
achieved outstanding performance to
encourage excellence in the workplace. In
January 2003, Chairman Allan WONG
presented the 2002 award to Ralph Eric
TISCHLER, Engineering Manager at VTech
Telecommunications Canada Ltd. Mr.
TISCHLER, who has been with VTech since
1989 and central to the creation of many
core product lines, received the award for
his management of the development of the
ground-breaking 300MHz and 5.8GHz
cordless telephone platforms in 1991 and
2002 respectively.

KEEPING OPEN THE DIALOGUE Open
communications are critical to sound
employee relations and VTech has sought
to use the latest technology to expand the
scope of its dialogue with employees.

VTech's intranet is one of the powerful tools
that enables efficient communication
between all our offices, offering an
abundance of information on Company’s
developments, guidelines and standards,
and cross-functional resource tools. Through
the intranet, the global on-line quarterly
newsletter keeps staff informed of key
developments within the Group.

The quarterly“Chairman’s Letter” opens lines
of communication directly between all staff
around the world and the Chairman. In the
letter, the Chairman discusses broad issues
facing the Group and solicits the views of

those affected. The responses from

employees have been very positive.

DEVELOPING PEOPLE THROUGH TRAINING AND
EDUCATION Quality product begins with
quality people.VTech places particular
emphasis on enriching the lives of
employees through education.

People working at the Group receive a wide
variety of practical job-related training that
have been designed specifically to enhance
their on-the-job performance. Courses that
have been offered range from such soft
skills as delivering effective presentations
and people management to courses on
computer performance and literacy.

In addition, each year VTech offers training
subsidies to employees choosing to follow
courses of study that will broaden their
skills. During the financial year 2003, our
people have taken up subsidies for courses
ranging from various seminars to MBA/MSc
programs.

EMPLOYMENT POLICY The policy at VTech is
to employ, retain, promote, terminate and
treat all employees on the basis of merit,
qualifications and competence. The Group
creates a favorable work environment in
which all employees can enjoy equal
opportunities at work and avoid
discrimination on the grounds of age, sex,
status, disability or any other non-job
related factor.

VTech and the Cemmunity

VTech’s products and technolagy aim to
enhance people’s lives by making them
more enjoyable, fulfifling, convenient and
enlightening.

The Company creates prosper:ty through
the employment it provides to
approximately 13,500 people from all walks
of life in the United States, Europe and Asia.
VTech also seeks effective ways of
supporting community initiatives in the
markets where it operates that help further
ideals such as improved access to education
and support for individuals in genuine need.

In Hong Kong, VTech provides summer
internships at local universities and colleges
of education. These give students the
opportunity to gain real-life experience of
the world of work.

XLENCE AWARDS FOR OUTSTANDING CHILDREN
In the United States, the Group’s donation
and sponsorship programme also has a
special emphasis on education. For the
2002-2003 school year, VTech announced a
sponsorship agreement with the National
Parent Teacher Association (PTA) to create
the "XLence Awards” programme which
honors children aged 5 to 11 years old, who
excel in all areas of their lives, from school
and extracurricular activities to community
service.

Arr, 1 I DAarmear:t JAN2
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In January 2003, after receiving more than
600 essay nominations, VTech's panel of
judges selected 31 XLence Awards winners,
including a 10 year-o'd Grand Prize Winner
from California who will receive & US$25,000
scholarship ard five First Place winners who
will each receive a US$7,000 scholarship
and a Gateway personal computer.

Corporate Covernance

YTech is committed to maintaining a strong
system of corporate governance so that all
business activities and decision-making can
be properly regulated. In May 2003, YTech
was ranked the 6th among the top 10 Hong
Kong companies for its good corporate
governance ir. the 2003 CLSA Corporate
Governance Report.This report was
produced by CLSA and Asian Corporate
Gavernance Associatian (ACGA), an
independent, non-profit organization based
in Hong Korq that works on behalf of all
investors and other interested parties to
improve corporate governance practices in
Asia. This report did recognize VTech's effort
and commitment in maintaining a high
level of corporate governance.

Our company structure also he!lps ensure
that the Group operates in a lawful, ethical,
structured, transparent and effective
manner.

VTech Holdings Ltd

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS To achieve this, the
Board has established three governing
boards with defined terms of reference. They
are the Board of Management, Audit
Committee and Risk Management
Committee. Further committees may be
established in future as and when needed.

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT The Management
Board has been delegated the authority by
the Board of Directors to be responsible for
management of all business activities of
the Group.lts members are appointed by
the Board from time to time and comprise
2xecutive directors and senior management
axecutives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE The Audit Committee has
been established to assist the Board in
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for
financial reporting, risk management and
evaluation of internal controls and auditing
procasses. It also ensures that the Group
complies with all applicable laws and
regulations.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice
a year to receive reports from external
auditors, raviews the interim and annual
financial statements, and receives regular
reports fror the internal audit functions.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE The Risk
Management Committee assists the Audit
Committee and management in reviewing
and assessing the adequacy of the Group's
risk management and internal control
systems. It meets as required and to report
to the Board in conjunction with the Audit
Committee.

The Group maintains controls to safeguard
the Group’s assets and ensure that
transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization. The
information systems in place are designed
to ensure that the financial report is reliable.
The Risk Management and Compliance
division, headed by the Chief Compliance
Officer, will assist the Risk Management
Committee to independently review these
controls and evaluate their adequacy,
effectiveness and compliance.




Directors and Senior Management

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Allan WONG Chi Yun, JP, aged 52, Chairman, co-founded the Group
in 1976.Dr. WONG holds a Bachelor of Science degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of
Science degree in efectrical and computer engineering from the
University of Wisconsin and an honorary degree of Doctor of
Technology from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr. WONG is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Applied Science and
Technology Research Institute and a member of the Council of
Advisors on Innovation and Technology. He serves on the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council. He is also a council member of
the University of Hong Kong, an independent non-executive
director of the Bank of East Asia Ltd, China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Ltd and Li & Fung Ltd.

Albert LEE Wai Kuen, aged 52, Deputy Chairman, joined the Group
in 1984 and became a director in the same year. Before joining
the Group, he ran his own electronics manufacturing service
company for two years and was a manager of a computer chess
game manufacturing company for three years. Mr. LEE holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in electrical engineering from the
University of Calgary.

Paddy LAW Wai Leung, aged 42, Group Chief Executive Officer. An
Executive Director since 2001. Prior to joining VTech in 1997,

Dr. LAW worked in the Marubeni Group and Thomas De La Rue,
HK for ten years. Since joining the Group, he has held a number
of senior positions in various business functions in the US and
China offices, including the General Manager for China, Group
CO0 & CFO. In June 2002, Dr. LAW was appointed the Group Chief
Executive Officer. He holds a PhD from JiNan University, PRC,

a DBA from Southern Cross University, Australia and an MBA from
Durham University, UK and is a fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. He is also member of the Institute of Internal
Auditors, US and the Institute for the Management of Information
Systems, UK. Dr.LAW is currently a Post-doctoral researcher of
Chinese Academy of Sciences, PRC.

Raymond CH'IEN Kuo Fung, GBS, CBE, JP, aged 51, is Independent
Non-executive Director since November 2001. Dr. CH'IEN is
Executive Chairman of chinadotcom corporation as well as
Chairman of its subsidiary, hongkong.com corporation. He is also
non-executive Chairman of HSBC Private Equity (Asia) Ltd and
serves on the boards of HSBC Holdings plc; the Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd; Inchcape plc; Inmarsat
Ventures plc; Convenience Retail Asia Ltd; MTR Corporation Ltd
and The Wharf (Holdings) Ltd. In public service, Dr. CH'IEN is
Chairman of the Hong Kong/Japan Business Cooperation
Committee; and Chairman of the Advisory Committee on
Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption.
Dr. CH'IEN is an honorary President and Past Chairman of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He is also President of Hong
Chi Association, Hong Kong’s leading non-government
organization helping mentally handicapped persons. He was
previously Chairman of the Industry and Technology

DAy il s com L nA tha Hama Kana 1laA inl TarhrnmlAmay

Centre Corporation Ltd. From 1992 to 1997, Dr. CH'IEN was a
member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong, then under
British Administration, He was appointed a member of the
Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR on 1st July 1997 and
served until 2002. He received a doctoral degree in Economics
from the University of Pennsylvania, USA in 1978. He was
appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1993 and a Comrander in
the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1994 and
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star Medal in 1999,

William FUNG Kwol Lun, OBE, JP, aged 54, is Independen: Non-
executive Director since November 2001. Dr. FUNG is the Group
Managing Director of Li & Fung Limited and has held key
positions in major trade associations. He is past Chairman of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, the Hong Kong
Exporters’ Association and the Hong Kong Committee for the
Pacific Economic Cooperation Council. Dr. FUNG holds a Bachelor
of Science in Engineering from Priceton University, and an MBA
degree from the Harvard Graduate School of Business. He has
been awarded an Honorary Doctorate degree of Business
Administration by the Hong Kong University of Scierce and
Technology. Dr. FUNG is also Non Executive director of
Convenience Retail Asia Limited, HSBC Holdings plc.,
chinadotcom corporation and CLP Group Holdings L mited.

Michael TIEN Puk Sun, aged 52, is Independent Non-executive Director
since November 2001. Mr.TIEN is Chairman and founder of the
(2000 Group which starts its business back in 1979. Before
starting up G2000, he worked with Macy’s Department Store

in New York, USA. Mr. TIEN is an active member in Hong Kong
community affairs, holding posts like Chairman of the Standing
Committee on Language Education and Research; Vice Chairman
of the Employee Retraining Board and member of the Education
Commissicn. He is also the Chairman of Privatization Subgroup of
the Business Advisory Group under the Financial Secretary’s
Office. Mr. TIEN was appointed as the Chairman of Kewloon-
Canton Railway Corporation in December 2001.

Patrick WANG Shui Chung, JP, aged 52, is Independent Non-executive
Director since November 2001, Mr. WANG joined the Johnson
Electric Group in 1972 and became a Director in 1976 and
Managing Director in 1984.1n 1996, he was elected Chairman and
Chief Executive of the Company. He is a member of the Exchange
Fund Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority,
a Board Member of Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation. He is
also a Councit member of the University of Hong Kong, a Council
member of The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a member of
Hong Kong/European Union Business Co-operation Committee,

a member of Hong Kong-United States Business Council, a non-
executive director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Ltd, and a non-executive directer of Tristate Holdings
Ltd. Mr. WANG obtained his BSc and MSc degrees in Electrical
Engineering from Purdue University in Indiana, USA.




Directors and Serior Management

PROFILE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Telecommunication Producss

James C KRALIK, aged 38, Chief Executive Officer of
Telecommunication Products business, is resporsible for overseeing
the global coasumer telephone business, and tormulating
strategy to further strengzhen Vech's positicr in the
telecommunications industry. Mr. KRALIK begen his career s a
management consultent at McKinsey & Comp:ny where he
counseled lecding clients in various industries in both Asia and
North America. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. KRALIK founded
and managed one of the Asia’s l=ading media ind entertainment
companies from 1993 to 2000. He is an independent non-
executive diractor of Tristate Holdings Ltd and holds a Bachelor
degree in Eccriomics from Harvard College and an MBA cegree
from the Harvérd Business Scheol.

Kent WONG Wah Shun, eged 40, Chief Operating Officer of
Telecommunication Products business, is responsible for operations,
product management.and reseisrch and develepment. Fricr to
joining the Group in 1989, Mr. WONG worked inicomputer
industry. He holds a Master degree i Enginearing, a Master
degree in Maznagement and an MBA.

Phil SHERMAN, aged 52,:Chief Operating Officer of North Ameriza,
joined the Gaup in 1999, Mr. SHERMAN is responsible for
overseeing administration and sales support and operations in
North America. He has over 25 years of experience in finance,
operations and generz| management with majcr global;
corporations in the manufacturing, distributio~ and retail
industries inciuding Textron Inc. and The Stanley Warks.

Mr. SHERMAN holds & Bachelor's degree in Accounting from
Roger Williams' University and a Master’s degree in Eusiness
Administraticn from 3ryant College. He is also a mem ser of
Financial Executives International and Society for Human
Resource Manegement.

Gary TAM Wai {eung, aced 39, Vice President & General Marager of
Business Deveicpment, Viach Telecommunications Ltd, is
responsible fur the development of GDM (Orig¢inal Design
Manufacturing) busiress worldwide and the sales & marketing of
VTech brand in Europe and South America. Mr. TAM joinad VTech
in 1986. He holds a Bachiztor degree in electronics engineering
from The Chir;e‘se Univ‘er"s‘i‘ty of Hong Kong.

Gary ROGALSIKG, aged 40, Vice President of Engincering of VTech
Engineering Canada Ltd, is responsible for R&D of 2.4GHz and
5.8GHz digita! telephcny produsts and emerging technologies for
North America, Mr. ROGALSKI joined YTech in 1388 and had 18
years of R&D experience in the telecemmunications industry. He
holds a diploina in telacoinmunicatiens from British Columbia
institute of Technology.

Stanley HARTSTEIN, aged 45, Vice Presidznt of Businiess Development

of VTech Communications, Inc., is respunsible fo the development
of new techrnlogies and markets, and manages the VTech

~ Companion M 3 il Statien, the VTech investment in HomeRealey, and
. the VTech relanonshlp thh AT&T. Mr, HARTSTE:N joined VTech in

2000 and has over 21 years experience in the Consumer
Electronics industry. He holds a Bachelor degree in Accounting
from the State University of New York.

Nick DELANY, aged 51, Vice President of Supply Chain and Logistics
of VTech Communications, Inc., is responsible for the overall
management of Supply Chain System and logistics of
Telecommunication Products business. Prior joining VTech in
2000, Mr. DELANY had 23 years sales and management
experience in the industrial, retail, construction and mining
industries in the US, Europe, Asia and South Africa including five
years experience developing supply chain systems in leading
companies in the USA. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Marketing
and Financial Management from the University of South Africa &
Damlein College.

Electronic Learning Products

Edwin YING Lin Kwan, aged 50, Chief Executive Officer of Electronic
Learning Products business, is responsible for overseeing the
global Electronic Learning Products business. Mr.YING joined
VTech in 1986 as Chief Mechanical Engineer. Before joining the
Group, he had 10 years of technical experience in electronic
products. Mr. YING holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
mechanical engineering from the University of Hong Kong.

Alan TS0 Yan Wing, aged 44, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer of Electronic Learning Products business, joined
the Group in November 2001 and appointed to the present
positions in December 2002, In the same month, he was also
appointed as Director of Corporate Communications to look after
the Group’s investor relationships and communication functions.
He has over 20 years of experience in professional accounting
and finance. He holds a master degree in business administration
from the University of Ottawa and is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants, a fellow member of the
Chartered Institute of Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, and a member of the Certified General Accountants in
Canada.

William 70, aged 47, President of VTech Electronics North America,
L.L.C., joined the Group in 1983.Mr.TO is responsible of the
Group's Electronic Learning Products business in US and Canada.
He holds an MBA from University of Chicago.

Andrew DICKSON, aged 42, Chief Executive Officer of Northern Europe
operation of Electronic Learning Products business, joined the
Group in November, 2001. Mr. DICKSON is responsible for the
Group’s electronic learning products business in UK and
Scandinavia. With over 15 years of experience in sales and
marketing of consumer durable products and operational
management experience in marketing, finance and logistical
functions, he had been the UK Managing Director of IDTUK
(Oregon Scientific UK Ltd). Mr. DICKSON graduated from Royal
College of Music and attended Insead International School of
Management.




Gilles SAUTIER, aged 47, Chief Executive Officer of Southern Europe
operation of Electronic Learning Products business, joined the
Group in November 2000 and is responsible for the Group’s
electronic learning products business in France, Belgium, Spain,
Portugal, Greece and Turkey. With over 23 years of experience in
marketing, sales and management in the toy industry, he held
various positions in Kenner-Parker, Spear’s Games, Ideal Toys and
Majorette. He holds a Bachelor degree in Law from Paris
University and an MBA from L'ESSEC, a French business school.
Mr. SAUTIER is a member of the Board of the French Toy
Federation.

Josef LUKAS, aged 47, Managing Director of Central Europe operation
of Electronic Learning Products business, joined the group in March
2001 and is responsible for the Group’s electronic learning
products business in Germany, Austria, Switzerland, Netherlands,
Poland, Hungary and Russia. With over 20 years of experience in
retailing and branded consumer goods industry, he had been the
Managing Director of Binney and Smith for Germany and Austria.
He holds a Bachelor degree in Business from the University of
Munich.

Contract Manufacturing Services

Andy LEUNG Hon Kwong, aged 44, Chief Executive Officer of Contract
Manufacturing Services business since April 2002 after serving as
General Manager for nine years. He joined VTech in 1988,

Mr. LEUNG has 18 years of experience in the EMS industry.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in electrical engineering
from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne in the UK and he
holds an MBA degree from Oklahoma City University in the US.

Alex CHOI Lap Hung, aged 40, Vice President of Business Development
of VTech Communications Ltd, is responsible for the development
of contract manufacturing services business worldwide and the
project management team. Before joining the Group in
November 2002, Mr. CHO! worked in another couples of EMS
companies for 16 years in various perspective, including
marketing, project management and quality assurance. He holds
a Master of Engineering degree of Manufacturing Systems
Engineering from Warwick University, UK.

Francis CHAN Chin Hung, aged 43, Senior Manufacturing Manager of
VTech Communications Ltd, is responsible for engineering and
production of the contract manufacturing services business.
Before joining the Group in 1998, Mr. CHAN had more than 10
years of experience in electronic manufacturing. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical & Electronic Engineering
from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne in the UK.

Kent CHEUNG King Fai, aged 41, Senior Material Manager of VTech
Communications Ltd. Mr. CHEUNG joined VTech in 1989.He is
responsible for materials management. Mr. CHEUNG has more
than 20 years of experience in the electronics industry. Prior to
joining VTech, he held a senior position in various electronic
companies.

Directors and Senior Management

Albert YUNG Kam Kit, aged 46, System & QA Manager of VTech
Communications Ltd, is responsible for guality management of the
contract manufacturing services. Before joining VTech in 2000,
Mr.YUNG had 18 years of experience in electronic manufacturing.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Hong Kong.

Corporate Services

Helen WONG Shuk Ving, aged 49, Group Chief Information Officer, joined
the Group in May 2003. With over 20 years of IT, consulting and
accounting experience, she has held many senior positicns in Hong
Kong and Canada. Prior to joining the Group, she was with
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (Hong Kong}) for over 13 years,
and the last position held was partner in the consulting practice.
Before that, she was a senior manager at the Hong Kong Hospital
Authority. Prior to that, she worked in Canada as a senior systems
manager in a commercial bank and a telecommunication company.
Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from Queen'’s
University, and is a member of the Certified Management
Accountant {(CMA) in Canada and the Hong Kong Comp uter Society.

CHANG Yu Wai, aged 43, Company Secretary and Chief Compliance
Officer, joined the Group in June 2000 and has held a number of
senior posts in the Group since then, including Chief Financial
Officer of Telecommunication Division and Group Financial
Controller. He had over 15 years of experience in professional
accounting. Mr. CHANG is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Shereen TONG Ka Hung, aged 34, Group Controller - Accounting and
Finance, is responsible for the Group accounting, treasury and
financial functions. She joined the Group in 1994 and had over
13 years of finance and accounting experience. She holds two
Master degrees in Business Administration and Inforrnation
Systems from Manchester Business School and Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is an associate of Chartered Institute
of Bankers, Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and
Hong Kong Society of Accountants.

Paul KAN Yui Pe, 2ged 46, Group IT Manager, is responsiole for
information management and technology services. Fe joined the
Group in 1990 with over 20 years of IT experience. Mr. KAN holds
two Master degrees in business administration and
manufacturing engineering. He is a Certified Quality Analyst
(CQA), Certified Information System Auditor (CISA), Certified
Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP} and Project
Management Professional (PMP).

Derek LAU Chi Sing, aged 38, Financial Controller, joined the Group in
August 2002. Mr. LAU has over 13 years accounting and auditing
experience. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Assistant
Financial Controller of a listed company in Hong Kong and,
further before, a senior manager of an international accounting
firm. Mr. LAU graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor degree in Accountancy. He is a fellow member of
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Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure to submit their raport together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2003.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY The principal activity of the Group is the
design, manufacture and dlstnbutmn of consumer el&ctromc
products.

GROUP RESULTS ' The rezults of the Group for the vear ended
31st March 2003 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 32.

DIVIDENDS An interim dividend of US1.5 cents per ordinary share
(2002: nil) wes paid on 6th JanLary 2303.The di‘ectors have
recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.0 cents per
ordinary shar{2002: nil: io shareholders in rezpect of the year
ended 31st March 2003 whose names appear on the register of
members of the Compariy at th2 close of business on 6th August
2003.

© The final dividend will be payatle on 25th August 20063 in United
States dollars save that tnose shareholders with a registered

* address in Hong Kong wil receive the equivalert amcunt in
Hong Kong dollars and those shareholders wanse names appear
. onthe register of members of the Company in the Unitec
Kingdom will raceive the equivalent amount in sterl'ng pounds
both calculated at the rates of exchange as quoted to the

. Company by The Honakeng and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited at its mid rate of exchange prevailing an 29th July 2003.

CLOSURE OF RESISTER OF MEMBERS The register of members of the
Company will be closad from 3Gth July 2003 t¢ 6th August 2003,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be effectec

. In order to qualify for the “inal dividend, all transfers of sharas

. accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must ke lodged
with the share registrars of the Company for reqgistration not later
" than 4:00 p.m,, the local time of the share regisirars, on 29th July
2003.

The principal registrar in Bermuda is Butterfield Fund Servicas
(Bermuda) Limited, Rosetank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Rozd,

* Pembroke, Bermuda, the aranch regisirar in the Unite¢ Kingdom
is Capita IRG ?lr, Bourre House, 34 Beckenham Road, Kent BR3

- 4TU, DX91750, Beckenharn West, United Kingdom, and the branch
. registrar in Hring Kong is Computershare Hong kong Invester

© Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Cantre,

: 183 Queen’s Road Easi, Hong Kong.

COMMENTARY €3 PERFORMANCE A commentary or- the performance
" of the Group is includad in the review of operations set out on
pages 14 to 15,

. FINANCIAL SUMMARY A suramary of the results and of the assets
- and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
. out on pages 49 and 50

TANGIBLE ASSETS Details of the movements in tangible assets are
shown in note 9 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS Details of the
movements in share capital, share options and warrants of the
Company during the year are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES Movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations in aggregate of US$118,000.

DIRECTORS The board of directors of the Company as at
31st March 2003 and up to 25th June 2003 comprised:

Mr. Allan WONG Chi Yun
Mr. Albert LEE Wai Kuen
Mr. Paddy LAW Wai Leung Group Chief Executive Officer)

{Chairman)

(

(
Mr.Raymond CH'IEN Kuo Fung (independent Non-executive Director

(

{

(

Deputy Chairman)

Mr. William FUNG Kwok Lun
Mr. Michael TIEN Puk Sun
Mr. Patrick WANG Shui Chung

)
Independent Non-executive Director)
Independent Non-executive Director)
)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Albert LEE Wai Kuen and Mr. Paddy LAW Wai Leung shall retire
from the Board in accordance with bye-law 112 of the bye-laws of
the Company, but being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-
election as directors of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are
set out on pages 25 to 27.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS None of the directors has a service
contract with any company in the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES According to the register of
directors’interests maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance of
Hong Kong and the records of notification made to the UK
Listing Authority pursuant to Paragraphs 16.13 10 16.17 of the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority in the United
Kingdom, as at 31st March 2003, the directors and their
associates had the following interests in the shares of the
Company. All of these interests were beneficial:

Number of shares

Name of director Personal interests  Family interests  Other interests Total
Allan WONG ChiYun 10,307,393 3,968,683 78,700,590 92,976,666
notes 1,2, 3
Albert LEE Wai Kuen 999,332 — - 999,332
Paddy LAW Wai Leung — — — —
Raymond CHIEN Kuo Fung — — —
William FUNG Kwok tun 1,045,630 — — 1,045,630
Michael TIEN Puk Sun 1,123,000 — — 1,123,000

Patrick WANG Shui Chung — — —— —




Notes:

1. The shares are held as to 65,496,225 by Conquer Rex Limited, as to 1,416,325 by
Honorex Limited, as to 7,188,603 by Twin Success Pacific Limited and as to
4,599,437 by Power Precise Holdings Limited which are corporations controlled
by Mr. Alan WONG Chi Yun.

2. Conquer Rex Limited is beneficially owned by Honorex Limited.

3. Conquer Rex Limited, Honorex Limited and Twin Success Pacific Limited are
beneficially owned by Newcourt Trustees Limited as trustee of The Wong Chung
Man 1984 Trust, the discretionary objects of which are family members of
Mr. Allan WONG Chi Yun.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES Pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 10th August 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”), the
Company granted share options in favour of certain directors to
subscribe for shares of the Company at prices to be determined
by the board of directors in accordance with the terms of the
2001 Scheme.

According to the register of directors’ interests maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of

Name of director Date of grant Exercise price

Exercisable period

Report of the Directors

A register of directors’ and chief executives'interests and short
positions was maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong which
had replaced the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance of
Hong Kong and came in force on 1st April 2003.

During the period from 1st April 2003 to 25th June 2003, there
was no change to the above interests.

Interests) Ordinance of Hong Kong and the records of notification
made to the UK Listing Authority pursuant to Paragraphs 16.13 to
16.17 of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority in
the United Kingdom, as at 31st March 2003, the directors and
their associates had the following interests in share options of
the Company. All of these interests were beneficial:

At 37st March 2003
Number of share options

At Tst Aprif 2002
Number of share options

Allan WONG Chi Yun 11th March 2002 HK$10.20 11th March 2002 to 10th March 2012 (note 1) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Atbert LEE Wai Kuen Sth March 2002 HKS$10.20 Sth March 2002 to 4th March 2012 (note 1) 1,750,000 1,750,000
Paddy LAW Wai Leung 5th March 2002 HK$10.20 5th March 2002 to 4th March 2012 (nate 1) 1,750,000 1,750,000

26th July 2002 HK$8.71 26th July 2002 to 25th July 2012 {note 1) — 150,000

No options were exercised by any director or had lapsed during
the year.

Note 1. As one of the conditions of grant, the grantee concerned agreed with the
Company that the options granted shall not be exercisable within the period of 36
months from the date on which such options were granted or deemed to be
granted and accepted and shall not be exercisable after 60 months from the date
on which such options were granted or deemed to be granted and accepted.

A register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions was maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong which

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS No contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS According to the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 16(1) of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the register of interests in shares and short
positions pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance of Hong Kong which had replaced the Securities
(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance of Hong Kong and come in
force on 1st April 2003 and the records of notification made to
the UK Listing Authority pursuant to Paragraphs 9.11 t0 9.14 of
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority in the United
Kingdom and in so far as is known to the Company, the parties,

had repfaced the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance of
Hong Kong and came in force on 1st April 2003.

During the period from 1st April 2003 to 25th June 2003, there
was no change to the above interests.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors and their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

other than those directors as abovementioned, holding a 3% or
more equity interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
together with the amount of each of such parties' interests as at
31st March 2003 and 25th June 2003, were as follows:

31st March 2003 25th June 2003
Number of Percentage of  Numberof Percentage of

Name of shareholder shares  shareholding shares  shareholding
HKSCC Nominees Limited 109,521,834 48.56% 103,569,507 45.92%
Newcourt Trustees Limited

as Trustee of The Wong

Chung Man 1984 Trust

(note 1) 74,101,153 32.85% 74,101,153 32.85%
Honorex Limited (note 2) 66,912,550 29.66% 66,912,550 29.66%
Conquer Rex Limited 65,496,225 29.04% 65,496,225 29.04%
HSBC Nominees

{Hong Kong) Limited 16,010,483 7.10% 16,011,483 7.10%
Twin Success Pacific Limited 7,188,603 3.19% 7,188,603 3.19%
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© Notes:

"1, Newcourt Trus: ees Limited a; trustee of The Wong Chung Man 1984 Tius:

: beneficially ow rled all the is ued shares in Conquer Rex Limitec, Honorex
Limited and Twin Success Pacific Limitad.

2. Honorex Limiied beneficially cwned ¢l the issued shares in Conguer Rex
Limited.

There were no contracis of significance with corporate
substantial shareholders during the year under review,

© MANAGERMENT CONTRACTS No contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
- part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
. during the year.

SECURITIES PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTS At the annua! general

+ meeting held on 9th August 2002, shareholders renewed the

© approval of a general mandate authorizing the cirec:ers to effect
repurchases o* the Company’s own shares up to a limit of 10% of
the shares in issue as at that date.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPT ON OF LISTED SHARES The Company has
not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or s0'd any of
the Company's shares during the year.

" MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS During the year the five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the total
" value of the Group’s purcases. The Group’s largest customer
accounted for approxirmately 10.3% of the Group revenue and

* the Group's five largest customers in aggregate accounted for

+ approximately 37% of the Group revenue duriry the yzar.

' None of the diréctors, théir associates or any sharehclder (who, to
, the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capitzl) hiad an interast in the customers and
the suppliers nqted above,

. PRE-EMPTIVE RsuiTS There fs no provision for pre-emptive rights
- under the bye- Iaws of the C Company and there are nc statutory
. restrictions aga nst such rights under the laws.<f Bermudz n

- which the Corpany is incerporatad.

" SHARE OPTION 3CHEMES Th2 Company operates share option

" schemes for the purposeé of providing incentives and ‘ewards to
. eligible participants who contribute to the succass of the Group’s
- operations. Eligible participants of these share cptior schernes
_include employies of t1e Company and/or any of its subsidiaries,
‘, including executive diractars of any of such companias.

" On 10th August 2001, the Company adopted z share option

~scheme (the 2001 Scheme”) under which the d'recters mey, at

. their discretion,at any time during the 10 years from the czte of

~adoption of the 20071 Scheme, invite employees of the Comoany
and any subsidiaries of the Group, including executiva directors

" (but excluding non-executive directors) to taks up shares of the

. Company in accordance with the terms of the 2001 Scheme.

The share opt »n schemie adopted by the Company on 24th
~September 199" (the "19%1 Scheme") expired on 23rd 5epiember

2001. Options granted and not yet exercised under the 1991
Scheme have lapsed during the year.

HomeRelay Communications, Inc. ("HomeRelay’ formerly known
as Unbound Communications, Inc.), a subsidiary of the Company,
located and established under the laws of the United States of
America, adopted a stock option plan in August 2000 (the
“HomeRelay Plan"). Under the HomeRelay Plan, HomeRelay may
grant up to 10% of HomeRelay's common stock and a committee
designated by the board of directors of HomeRelay may fix the
terms and vesting of the options which in no event shall exceed
10 years.

Details of the 1991 Scheme, the 2001 Scheme and the HomeRelay
Plan are set out in note 20 to the financial statements,

CONNECTED TRANSACTION As announced on 11th April 2003, the
Company has entered into a transaction which constitutes a
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Chapter 11 of the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority in the United
Kingdom (as the case may be) as set out below:

On 11th April 2003, the Company as tenant entered into an
agreement with Aldenham Company Limited (“Aldenham”) as
landlord for the lease of the premises situated at Bowen Road,
Hong Kong for 2 years commencing on 1st April 2003 at a
monthly rental of HK$250,000 for the purpose of providing
housing to Mr. Allan WONG Chi Yun, a director of the Company, in
accordance with the terms of his employment contract.
Aldenham is a company 50% owned by Mr. Altan WONG Chi Yun's
wife and 50% owned by a trust the beneficiaries of which are

Mr. Allan WONG Chi Yun and his family members. Aldenham is
therefore a connected person of the Company as defined in the
Listing Rules.The entering into of the lease by the Company
constituted a connected transaction for the Company.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS On 7th June 2002, the Group and
Lucent Technologies Inc. {“Lucent”) settled the lawsuit filed by
the Group against Lucent in January 2001 in a mutually
satisfactory manner. There was no admission of wrongdoing by
either party. Under the terms of the settlement, Lucent agreed to
adjust the purchase price of the acquisition downward by
US$50.0 million and such amount was fully settled in cash during
the year ended 31st March 2003.

After settling its claims against Lucent, the Group commenced
litigation against PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC") on

28th February 2003, seeking damages for Pw(’s alleged
malpractice and breach of duty and fraud in representing the
Group concerning the acquisition of part of the Lucent Consumer
Telephone Business in March 2000.0n 1st May 2003, PwC moved
to dismiss the complaint and it is anticipated that the Court will
rule on that motion within the next several months. The Group
remains confident that it will prevail on PwC's motion to dismiss
although there is no way to accurately predict the outcome. The
Group attempted to settle with PwC which refused to enter any
settlement discussion with the Group.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING SPECIAL BUSINESS The following special
business will be proposed at the annual general meeting to be
held on 6th August 2003:

1. the grant to the directors of the Company a general
mandate to repurchase shares of the Company;

2. the grant to the directors of the Company a general
mandate to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of
the Company; and

3. the extension of the general mandate which will be granted
to the directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of the Company by adding the number of
shares repurchased under the repurchase mandate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed internal control and financial
reporting matters including the audited financia! statements
for the year ended 31st March 2003, The Audit Committee also
received reports from external auditors to review the nature,
scope and results of the external audit.

The members of the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Raymond
CH'IEN Kuo Fung, Mr. William FUNG Kwok Lun and Mr. Michael

TIEN Puk Sun, the independent non-executive directors of the

Company.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE In the opinion of the directors, the
Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
throughout the accounting period except that certain
independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term.

AUDITORS In February 2003, PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned
as auditors of the Company and KPMG were appointed as the
auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by
the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG, who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By Order of the Board

Allan WONG Chi Yun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th June 2003

Report of the Auditors

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

{Incorporated in Bermuda with fimited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of VTech Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) on pages 32 tc 48
which have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the
fnternational Accounting Standards Board.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUBITORS  These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
directors who are required to prepare financial statements
which give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit.

BASIS OF OPINION  We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing as promulgated by the
International Federation of Accountants. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION  In our opinion the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and of the Group as of 31st March 2003 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Bermuda Companies Act.

{PMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25th June 2003




Consclidated Financia! Statements

CONSOUDATED INCOME STATEMENT e CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

For the year ended 315t March 200 As at 31st March 2003
2003 2002 2003 2002
Note US$ milfion Uss million Note USS$ million USS million
} irestated)
Non-current assets
Revenue 1 €66.5 9598
Cost of sales (§77.5) (6727) Tangible assets 9 48.0 580
: Leasehold land payments 10 2.7 3.1
+ Gross profit 289.0 287.1 Deferred tax assets 1 3.9 43
- T Investments 12 0.2 0.4
Seliing and distri-ution costs (165.8) 1153.8)
- Administrative ar-i other opziating expensas 63.7) 177.3) 548 65.8
: Research and devalopment 2xpenses 31.0) 133.0)
Gain on settlemert of a lawsuit 3 34.0 — Current assets
Operating profit 2 33.5 230 Stocks 13 84.0 94.4
Net finance costs 5 (1.0) 86) Assets held for sale 14 8.0 245
Share of results of associates (0.2) 0.5) Debtors and prepayments 15 139.9 165.3
. o R Taxation recoverable 1.5 30
Profit from ordinars activities before taxation 583 139 Cash and cash equivalents 70.4 633
Taxation 6 (17.4) (26) ‘
. . o T 303.8 3505
Profit from ordinary activities afier taxation 40.9 1.3
Minority interest 0.1} ©.1) Current liabilities
" Profit attributable to shareholcers 21 40.8 12 Creditors and accruals 1% (171.4) (187.9)
Interim dividend 7 34 — Provisk?ns 19 (40-4) (39.1)
AR . Borrowings 17 (0.5) (30.6)
Final dividend 7 4.5 — :
o [ Taxation payable (15.0) (2.1)
Earnings per share {ir US cents) Cot o (227.3) (259.7)
— Basic 18.1 5.0 :
— Diluted 18.1 50 Net current assets 76.5 90.8
Total assets less current liabilities 131.3 156.6

The notes on pages 33 to 46 forin part of these financial statements.
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 17 (2.2) (65.2)
‘ - Deferred tax liabilities 1 (0.8) {1.2)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 315t March 2003 (3.0) (66.4)
2903 2002 Minority interest (0.8) 0.8}
Note USS muliion Uss miflion
Net assets 127.5 89.4
Shareholders’ equity at 1st April 89.4 80.2 .
Capital and reserves
Deferred tax reversed upon disposal of ;hare capital ;? 1:;; ;;13
a property previously revilued 21 — 0.4 eserves ) :
Surplus/(deficit) arising on revaluation Shareholders' funds 1275 89.4
of other properties - 2i 0.5 (1.6) . :
Realization of hedyjing reserve 21 0.4 (0.3}
Fair value losses on hedging du‘ing Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 25th June 2003
the year 21 — (0.4)
Exchange trans! tion differarices 21 (0.2) 0.2)
Net gains/(lossez) not recognized in the
income statement 0.7 2.1}
Profit attributabie to sharehalders 21 40.8 1.2
Dividend approvad and paid during
the year 21 (3.4) —
Movements in st.are capitat
Placing of shares 21 — 0.1
Shareholders’ ecuity at 315t March 127.5 89.4 Allan WONG Chi Yun Paddy LAW Wai Leung
Director Director

The notes on pzges 33 to 48 form part of rhese tinanciaf stitzments. The notes on pages 33 to 48 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March 2003

2003 2002
Note US$ miltion USS million
Operating activities
Operating profit 59.5 230
Depreciation charges 2 241 338
Amortization of leasehold land payments 2 0.1 0.1
Impairment of leasehold land payments 2 0.2 -
impairment of tangible assets 2 —_ 36
Impairment of investment properties 2 — 05
Loss on disposal of tangible assets and
leasehold land 1.4 2.0
Gain on settlement of a lawsuit (34.0) —
Write down of discontinued stocks — 1.7
Decrease in stocks 10.4 91.4
Decrease in debtors and prepayments 254 90.8
Decrease in creditors and accruals (7.7) 63.4)
increase/(decrease) in provisions 1.2 (27.2)
Cash generated from operations 80.6 156.3
Net proceeds on settlement of a lawsuit 3 34.0 —
Interest received 1.2 30
Interest paid (2.2) (11.6)
Taxes paid (3.0) 0.9)
Net cash generated from operating activities 110.6 146.8
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of tangible
assets and leasehotd land 1.9 9.1
Proceeds from disposal of assets
held for sale 7.7 18.9
Purchase of tangible assets 9 (14.1) (13.3)
Purchase of associates - (04)
Purchase of subsidiaries and businesses - .1)
Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities (4.5) 142
Financing activities
Net repayment of current borrowings (29.9) (109.9)
Repayments of non-current borrowings (63.0) (41.3)
Dividend paid 7 (3.4) —
Dividend paid to minority shareholder 0.1) —
Praceeds from issuance of share capital — 0.1
Net cash used in financing activities (96.4) {151.1)
Effect of exchange rate changes (2.4) 0.2}
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 7.3 9.7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 63.1 534
Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 704 631
Analysis of the balance of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and deposits 70.4 633
Bank overdrafts — (0.2)
704 63.1

The nates on pages 33 to 48 form part of these financial statements.

Principal Accounting Policies

A BASIS OF PREPARATION The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board.
IFRS includes International Accounting Standards ("IAS") and
related Interpretations. These financial statements also comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities an The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. in view of the
international nature of the Group’s operations, the financial
statements are presented in United States Dollars, rounded to
the nearest million.

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis
as modified by revaluation of certain properties.

The accounting policies have been consistently app ied by the
Group and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

The Group’s separable segments are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

B BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION  The consolidated financial
statements include the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries together with the Group’s share of the
results and retained post acquisition reserves of its associates
under the equity method of accounting drawn up for the year
ended 31st March. All significant inter-company balances and
transactions and any unrealized gains arising from inter-
company transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries are those companies controlied by the Group,
where the Group, directly or indirectly, has an interest held for
the fong term, of mare than 50% of the voting rights and is
able to exercise control over the operations. Control exists
when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control effectively commences
until the date that control effectively ceases, and the share
attributable to minority interests is deducted from or added to
profit after taxation. Investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses (refer to note L) in the
Company's balance sheet.
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B BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued;  Associates are those
companies, nat being subsidiaries, in which the Group has an
attributable interest of 20% or more of the veting rights held for
the long term or ovaer which the Group exercisas significant
influence, but not cantral. The consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of the total recognizad gains and losses
of associates under the equity mettod, from the date that
significant influence commences until the date that signif.cant
influences ceases. Wtien the Group's share of losses exceeds the
carrying amount of the associate, the carrying amcunt is raduced
to nil and recognition ¢f further losses is discontinediexcept to
the extent thit the Erodp has incurred obligations'in respact of
that associate. fnvesiments in associates are:szatediat costifess
provision fc: impairment losses (refar to note L) in the Company's
balance sheet.

C  GOODWILL Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the
excess of th~ cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the ner identifiable assets of the acquirad
subsidiary or associzte. Goodwill is stated at cost lese
accumulated amortizatien and impairment lesses (refer to note
L). Amortization of cuodwill is calculated using the straight-line
method ove: its estimated useful life not exceeding five years.

The profit or loss on disposal of a subsidiary or an associate is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the dat2 of disposal
including th2attribuzabts amount of goodwil ‘which rémains
unamortized.

D NEGATIVE GOODWILL Negative goodwill arising on the
acquisition ;zpresents the excess fair values ¢7 the net
identifiable-assets and lizbilities acquired over the cost-of the
acquisition.

To the extent that negative goadwill relates to an expectation

of future losses and expenses that are identified in the plan of
acquisition znd can ke measurad reliably, but which dc nos
represent identifiable liabilities at the date of acquisition,

that porticn of negative goodwill will be recognized as income in
the income staitement when the future losses and eéxpenses are
recognized.

To the extent that negarive goodwill does no- relata to
identifiable expected future losses and expences at the date of
acquisition, negative gocdwill will ba recognized as incoms in
the income statement on a systematic basis cver the rema’ning
useful life of the identifiable acquired depreciable/amortizable
assets.The amount ¢f any negative goodwill in excess of the fair
values of accuired identifiable non-ronetary assets is recognized
immediately in the income statement.

The gain or )ss on cisposal of a subsidiary ¢r an associate
includes the unamortized balance of negative goodwill refating
to the subsicidry or asséciate disposad of,

E  FOREIGN CURRENCIES Transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into United States dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated
into United States dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Income statements of foreign entities are
translated into the Group's reporting currency at average
exchange rates for the year and balance sheets are translated

at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

Net exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of subsidiaries and associates expressed in
foreign currencies are taken directly to exchange reserve.

All other exchange differences are dealt with in the consolidated
Income statement.

F REVENUE RECOGNITION Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognized in the income statement when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to

the buyer. Revenue is stated net of sales taxes and discounts,
after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue from the provision of services is recognized when the
services are rendered.

Interest income is recognized on a time-apportioned basis that
takes into account the effective yield on the asset. Dividend
income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.

G RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT Research and development
costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to research
and development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities.

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalized only if the
product or process is clearly defined, technically and
commercially feasible, the attributable expenditure is separately
identifiable and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalized
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads which are directly attributable to
development activities. Capitalized development costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses
(refer to note L). Development expenditure that does not meet
the above criteria is recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortization is calculated to write off capitalized development
costs on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
commencing from the date when the products are put into
commercial production,




H INTANGIBLE ASSETS Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are carried at cost [ess any accumulated amortization and

any impairment losses (refer to note L). Amortization commences
from the date when the developed product is available for use.

| TANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION Land and buildings except
for investment properties (refer to note J) below, are stated at
cost or valuation performed by professional valuers every three
years less amounts provided for depreciation except in the case
of freehold land which is not depreciated. In the intervening
years the directors review the carrying value and adjustment is
made where there has been a material change. The valuations are
on an open market value basis and are incorporated in the
annual financial statements. Increases in valuation are credited to
the revaluation reserve; decreases are first set off against
increases on earlier valuations in respect of the same assets and
thereafter are charged to the consolidated income statement.
Upon the disposal of a revalued property, the relevant portion of
the realized revaluation reserve in respect of previous
revaluations is transferred from revaluation reserve to revenue
reserve.

All other tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (refer to note L).

Gains or losses arising from the disposals of tangible assets are
determined as the difference between the estimated net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement on the date of disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
which are as follows:

Lease term
10 to 30 years or lease term, if shorter

Long-term leasehold buildings
Freehold buildings, short-term
leasehold buildings and
leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment 310 5 years
Motor vehicles, furniture and fixtures 3to 7 years
Moulds 1 year

3 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES investment property is stated at fair
value determined annually by professional valuers. The valuations
are on an open market value basis, by reference to the current
prices in an active market for similar properties in the same
location and condition. Any gain or loss arising from a change

in fair value is recognized in the income statement.

K LEASES Leases of property, plant and equipment in terms
of which that the Group assumes substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Property,
plant and equipment acquired by way of finance lease is stated
at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Finance
charges are charged to the income statement in proportion of
the capital balances outstanding.

Principal Accounting Policies

Leases of assets under which all the benefits and risks of
ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leasehold land payments are up-front payments to acquire long-
term leasehold interests in tand. These payments are stated at
cost and are amortized over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the termination takes place.

L IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS  The carrying amounts of the Group's
assets including property, plant and equipment and other non-
current assets, including goodwill and other intangible assets, are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement.

The recoverable amount is the greater of their net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discounted rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the assat.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

M OTHER INVESTMENTS  Other investments held by the Group are
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognized in the income statement. On disposal of ar investment,
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is recognized to the income statement as they arise.

N STOCKS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (i) Stocks are stated at the
tower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is calculated on the
weighted average or the first-in-first-out basis, and comprises
materials, direct labour and an appropriate share of production
overheads. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimates of costs of
completion and selling expenses.

(i) Assets held for sale are stated at anticipated realizable value.

0 TRADE DEBTORS Trade debtors are carried at anticipated
realizable value. An allowance is made for doubtful receivables
based upon the evaluation of the recoverability of these
outstanding amounts at the balance sheet date. Bad debts are
written off during the year in which they are identified.




' P CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
© statement, cas"1 and cash equivalents compris2 cash an hand,
- demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,

Principal Accounting Policies

For the purpose of the casn flow

short-term highly liquid investments that are readily canvarzible

~into known amounts of cash and which are st bject to an
. insignificant 1isk of changes in value and which have a meturity
. of three months or less at acquisition. Bank overdrafts tha: are

- repayable on-demand and form an integral part of the Groun's
. cash managemant are also included as a component of cash and
» cash equivalents.

~ For the purpose of the bélance sheet, cash and cash equivalants
. are cash on hand, degesite with banks and othzrs financial

institutions, which are not restrizted in its use. Bank overdrafts
are included in borrowings in current liabilities.

© Q TRADE CREDITORS ~“Trzde and other creditors are statec at
~ their cost.

R PROVISIOKS - A provicion is recognized in t-e balance sheet
when the Greup has a leqgal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it iz probable that an outflow of econormic
benefits will be requirad to settie the obligatian, and a refiable
estimate of the amount of the cbligation can be made.

The Group recagnizes the estimeted 'iability or expected return
claims with respect to products sold. This provision is calculated
based on pasi experiencs of the level of repairs and returns.

The Group pro?ides for ékpenses related to closure of business
locations and reorganizations of the Group’s operations which are
subject to detziled fermal plans that are undar implementation
or have been communicazed to those affected by the plans.

The Group recognizes the experted costs of accumulating
compensater absences when employees render a service that
increases their entitlement to fuiure compenszted absences,
measured as the addizional amount that the C -oup exp=cts to
pay as a rest't of the unused entitlernent that has accumulated
at the balanca.sheet date.

S DEFERRED TAXATION Deferred taxation is provided using the
balance shee: liability method in resect of temporary
differences beween the carrying amounts of zssets and liabilities
for financial reporting purpose and the amounts used for
taxation purpase.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is
probable tha: future taxable profit will be available against which
the asset can be utilized.

Provision for withholcing tax which could arise on the remittance
of earnings retained cverseas is only made where there is a
current intention to remit such earnings.

T EMPLOYEE BENEFITS The Group operates a number of defined
contribution retirement schemes throughout the world, including
Hong Kong, and a defined benefit retirement scheme in Hong
Kong. The assets of all schemes are held separately from those of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

(i) Defined contribution plans  Contributions to the defined
contribution schemes are at various funding rates that are in
accordance with the local practice and regulations. Contributions
relating to the defined contribution schemes are charged to the
income statement as incurred.

(i) Defined benefit plans  For long-term employee benefits,
pension costs arising under the defined benefit scheme are
assessed using the projected unit credit method. Under this
method, the cost of providing pensions is charged to the income
statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives
of employees in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries
who carry out a full valuation of the plan every year. Plan assets
are measured at fair value. Pension obligations are measured as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows of benefits
derived from employee past service, with reference to market
yields on high quality corporate bonds which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. All
actuarial gains and losses are spread forward over the average
remaining service lives of employees. The net asset or liability
resulting from the valuation of the plan is recognized in the
Group's balance sheet.

(iii} Equity and equity related compensation benefits The Company
has a number of share option schemes which may grant options
to certain employees of the Company and subsidiaries of the
Group. No compensation cost of obligation is recognized at the
date of the grant and the option exercise price are set out in note
20 on the financial statements. When the options are exercised,
shareholders’ equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds
received.

U FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  The Group's activities expose it to
financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts
and interest rate swaps contracts to hedge certain exposures.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s
policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide
written principles on the use of financial derivatives.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized in the
balance sheet at cost and subsequently are remeasured at their
fair value. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss is
dependent on the nature of the item being hedged. On the date
a derivative contract is entered into, the Group designates certain
derivatives as either a hedge of the fair value of a recognized
asset or liability (fair value hedge), a hedge of a forecasted
transaction or of a firm commitment (cash flow hedge), or a
hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity.




Principal Accounting Policies

U FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)  Changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges and that are highly effective, are recorded in the
consolidated income statement, along with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that is attributable to
the hedged risk.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges and that are highly effective,

are recognized in hedging reserve. Where the forecasted
transaction or firm commitment results in the recognition of an
asset or of a liability, the gains and losses previousty deferred in
hedging reserve are transferred from hedging reserve and
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or
liability. Otherwise, amounts deferred in hedging reserve are
transferred to the consolidated income statement and
classified as revenue or expense in the same periods during
which the hedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction
affects the consolidated income statement.

If certain derivative transactions, while providing effective
economic hedges under the Group’s policies, do not qualify for
hedge accounting under the specific rules in 1AS 39,“Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ changes in the fair
value of these derivative instruments are recognized
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting under IAS
39, any cumulative gain or loss existing in hedging reserve at
that time remains in hedging reserve and is recognized, when
the committed or forecasted transaction ultimately is
recognized in the consolidated income statement. However, if a
committed or forecasted transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in hedging
reserve is immediately transferred to the consolidated income
statement.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions.

V. BORROWINGS Borrowings are recognized as the proceeds
are received, net of transaction costs incurred.

W DIVIDENDS Dividends proposed or declared after the
balance sheet date are not recognized as a liability at the
balance sheet date.

X SEGMENT REPORTING A segment is a distinguishable
component of the Group that is engaged either in providing
products or services {(business segment}, or in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment
{geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards
that are different from those of other segments.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 SEGMENT INFORMATION Revenue represents turnover of the
Group derived from the amounts received and receivable for
sale of goods and rendering of services to third parties.

The principal activity of the Group is the design, manufacture
and distribution of consumer electronic products. The
telecommunication and electronic products business is the
principal business segment of the Group.

Primary reporting format — business segments
Year ended 315t March 2003

Telecommunication
and electronic Other
products activities Total
USS million  US$ million  US$ milfion

i.  Segment revenue 864.0 2.5 866.5
Segment result 63.9 (3.¢) 60.9
Unallocated corporate

expenses (1.4)
Operating profit 59.5
Net finance costs (1.0)
Share of results of assaciates — (0.2) (0.2)
Profit from ordinary activities before taxation 58.3
Taxation (17.4)
Prafit from ordinary activities after taxation 40.9
Minority interest 0.1)
Prafit attributable to shareholders 40.8

i Segment assets 296.4 1.9 298.3
Associates — 0.7 0.1
Unallocated assets 60.2
Total assets 358.6
Segment liabilities 217.2 3.4 220.6
Unallocated liabilities 9.7
Total liabilities 230.3

i Capital expenditure, depreciation and
other net non-cash expenses

Capital expenditure 13.6 0.5 14.1
Depreciation 225 1.6 241
Amortization of leasehold

land payments — 0.1 0.1
impairment charges — 0.2 0.2
Other non-cash expenses 57 - 57

The Group evaluates the performance and allocates resources
to its operating segments. There are no sales or transactions
between the business segments. Corporate administrative costs
and assets are not allocated to the operating segments.

Segment assets consist primarily of tangible assets, stocks,
receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilitizs comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to moulds, machinery and
equipment, and other assets.
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1 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) Operating Operating
- L o ) Revenue Revenue profit/(loss) profit/(ioss)
‘, Primary reportl,,g‘format‘— business segments (continued) 2003 2002 2003 5002
+ Year ended 31st March 2002 US$ million Us$ million Us$ million Us$ mitlion
(restated) (restated)
Telecommunication
and electrenic Other North America 680.3 770.2 67.9 12.2
) . products sctivities ~ Total Europe 149.5 1485 (6.2) 171
; ' o USS million  USS million  US¢ million Asia Pacific 29.2 37.9 {2.0) (7.2)
: ———— Others 7.5 32 0.2) 09
i Segment revenue 9s87.7 s 2.1 359.8
. 866.5 959.8 59.5 23.0
Segment result 09 (6.1) 24.8
Unallocated ccrporate
expenses (1.8) Capital Capital Total Total
- expenditure expenditure assets assets
Operating profit 230 2003 2002 2003 2002
Net finance custs : 86) US$ miliion USSmillion  US$ miliion Us$ mittion
Share of results of associares —_— (0.5) 0.5) (restated) (restated)
P"’:‘ff'“": °fdt'f‘ary activties 1o NorthAmerica 24 26 154.9 1929
. et_°'e axatan g Fuope 05 06 47.7 290
axation : Asia Pacific 12 10.1 1534 1744
Profit from ordina:y activitias Others - - 26 -
after taxation 1.3
141 133 358.6 4163
: Minority interest 0.1
‘ Profit attributatie ‘to sharekclders 11.2
2 OPERATING PROFIT  The operating profit is arrived at after
(il Segment assets 390.8 23 3931 . . .
: Associates o1 02 03 charging/(crediting) the following:
Unallocated assets 229
. Total B 2003 2002
o Totlassets 6.3 Note  US$million  USSmitlion
t
' Seqment liabilizies 375.1 22 3173 (restated)
Unailocated lia3iliti 88
naflocated iaoites Staff related costs
Total liabilities 1261 — salaries and wages 88.1 934
: — pension costs: defined contribution
il Capital expendi- ire, restructuring schemes 18 1.5 1.3
cost, depreciztion and other net — pension costs: defined benefit
non-cash expanses scheme 18 1.0 13
Capital expenditure 13.0 03 133 — severance payments 4.4 1.6
Depreciation 39 29 338 Depreciation charges 9
Amortization of leasehold — owned assets 239 336
land payments - 0.1 0.1 - |eased assets 0.2 0.2
impairment charges 36 0.5 4.1 Amortization of leasehold land payments 10 0.1 0.1
Restructuring cosits ) 0.9 104 Impairment of leasehold land payments 10 0.2 —
Other non-casi: expenses 123 — 123 Impairment of tangible assets — 36
: ' Impairment of investment properties — 0.5
i » e Loss on disposal of tangible assets
;Secondary reporung format — geogrephical segments Although-the and teasehold land 14 20
:Group’s business segments are managed on a worldwide basis, Auditors' remuneration 0.6 08
ithey principally operate in the following geographical areas: Operating leases on land and buildings 87 6.4
. Provision for stock obsolescence 2.0 4.5
‘ i ) o o ) Provision for doubtful debts 37 9.5
‘North America —- the operations are principally <he distrisusion Repairs and maintenance expenditure 2.6 11
‘of tefecommunication and electranic consumer products. Royalties 16.5 9.1
! ) ‘ o Exchange (gain)/toss {2.6) 0.2
' - o Y o Forward contracts: fair value loss/(gain) on
:Europe — the operations are principally the distribution of cash flow hedge transferred
‘electronic consumer products. from hedging reserve 2 0.4 03}
‘Asi ific — D s uarte i 2 : . . . - .
AS'; Phamcf;c the GrOLDI ! hea?q artered in the Hong I|<or|g SC;\R Restructuring and impairment charges of US$14.0 million which
nd the Group's principa cturin tio1s al . . .
_a ol ZUCT principal manuta g operations aie locate were separately disclosed on the consolidated income statement for
M mainianc Lr'na. . .
! n the year ended 31st March 2002 have been reclassified according to
their nature into cost of sales and administrative and other operating
j expenses in the amounts of US$S1.7 million and US$12.3 million
respectively.
|
I




L

e o el S I b +—§4—«— O SO SUU SOet G U SO USROS SO S S SU O SRR

I

|

VSR S
‘ |

3 GAINONSETTLEMENT OF A LAWSUIT ~ On 25th January 2001, the
Group filed a complaint against Lucent Technologies Inc. (“Lucent”)
and Lucent Technologies Consumer Products, L.P.in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York seeking
damages and related relief arising out of the acquisition by the
Group of Lucent’s Wired Consumer Products Business in 2000.

On 7th June 2002, the Group and Lucent settled the lawsuit filed
by the Group against Lucent in January 2001 in a mutually
satisfactory manner. There was no admission of wrongdoing by
either party. Under the terms of the settlement, Lucent has
agreed to adjust the purchase price of the acquisition downward
by US$50.0 million. The amount has been fully settled. The net
receipt from the settlement, after deducting incidental expenses,
has been credited to the consolidated income statement.

2003 2002
Us$ million USS miltion

Receipt from settlement of a lawsuit 50.0 —
Less:incidental expenses {16.0) —
34.0 —

4 DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments

2003 2002
Uss million USs million

The emoluments of the directors of the Company

are as follows:

Fees 0.1 0.1
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1.8 22
Bonuses 0.8 0.6
Contribution to retirement benefit schemes 0.1 0.1
Deemed profit on share aption exercise — —
Inducement for joining the Group —_ —
Compensation for loss of office — —
2.8 3.0

The table below shows the number of directors whose
emoluments were within the bands stated:

2003 2002
Number of Number of
directors directors

US$
Nil ~ 128,000 4 6
128,001 - 192,000 — 1
192,001 - 256,000 — ]
256,001 - 320,000 — 1
320,001 - 384,000 — 1
512,001 - 576,000 —_ 1
640,001 - 704,000 1 —
704,001 - 768,000 — 2
896,001 - 960,000 i —

1,088,001 - 1,152,000 1 —

Notes to the Financial Statements

Emoluments of independent non-executive directors included
above amounted to US$60,000 (2002: US$63,000), being wholly
in the form of directors’ fees.

Senior executives’emoluments  The directors’emoluments set out
above exclude 2 senior executives (2002: 2) whose emoluments were
among the five highest earning employees of the Group. Details of
the emoluments in aggregate for these executives are set out below:

2003 2002

USS$ million UssS million

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 0.9 05
Bonuses 1.2 03
Contribution to retirement benefit schemes — —
Deemed profit on share option exercise — —
inducement for joining the Group — —
Compensation for loss of office — —
2.1 0.8

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

2003 2002
Individuals Individuals
uss
320,001 - 384,000 - ]
448,001 - 512,000 1 1
1,650,000 - 1,800,000 1 —
2 2
5  NET FINANCE COSTS
2003 2002
Us$ miltion US$ million
Interest expense
Wholly repayable within five years:
Bank loans and overdrafts 2.1 1.4
Finance leases — 0.1
Not wholly repayable within five years:
Bank loans 0.1 0.1
Interest income (1.2) (3.0)
1.0 86
6 TAXATION
2003 2002
US$ million USS$ million
Current tax
— Hong Kong 6.4 17
— Overseas 0.5 0.4
{Over)/underprovision in prior years
— Hong Kong 10.8 —
— Overseas 0.3) 0.5
17.4 26

Tax on profits has been calculated at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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<6 TAXATION (continued)  The consolidated effective income tax 9  TANGIBLE ASSETS

rate for the yes~ ended 31st March 2003 was 29.8% (2002: 18.7%).
' This effective income tax rate is reconciled to the statutcry Motor vehicfes,
. domestic income tax rate as follows: furniture and
Moulds, fixtures and
2003 2002 Land and machinery leasehold
; % % buildings and equipment  improvements Total
: Us$ million US$ milfion Us$ million Us$ million
1 Statutory domestic income tax. rate 6.0 16.0
. Difference in overse.at income tax rates 0.2 34 Cost or valuation
Non-temporary dif ~rznces (9.8) (17.7) At 1st April 2002 36.9 171.2 64.5 2726
; Tax losses not recor:nized 57 10.2 Additions 0.1 9.7 43 141
“ Underprovision in prior years 18.0 3.4 Revaluation (0.9) — — 0.9)
i Others 03) 34 Disposals (1.6) (4.2) (11.5) (17.3)
Effective income tax rate 298 187 Effect of changes in
: exchange rate 2.5 1.1 1.5 5.1
At 31st March 2003 37.0 177.8 58.8 2736

' The Group is currently in discussions with Hong Kong IRG
“regarding a dispute over the offshore income claims made by Accumulated depreciation

i 15.9 46.1 526 y

certain subsid aries of the Group in prior years. Wailst At Tst April 2002 ! 2146

Charge for the year 1.9 16.2 6.0 241

management considers that the subsidiaries have grouncs te Revaluation (1.4) _ _ (1.4)

1support these claims, the Datconte of the disputeremans Disposals (0.8) (4.2) 19.1) nan
rundetermined. The directers consider it prudent to establish a Effect of changes in

- provision of U5$11.0 million for the directors’ best estimate of exchange rate 08 0.4 1.2 24

“any liabilities which may ar.se on settlement or this dispute, At 31st March 2003 16.4 158.5 50.7 2956

}Which has been charged to the consolidated income staterent

Net book value at
‘for the year ended 31si March 2003. et ook value

315t March 2003 206 19.3 8.1 48,0
7 DIVIDENDS Net book value ot
i 31st March 2002 210 25.1 1.9 58.0
‘ _2‘?03 2902 Cost or valuation of
i Note Us$ mil ion U5 miltion tangible assets is
" Interim dividend declired and paid of analysed as follows:
' US1.5 cents per &hare (2002: nil) 21 3.4 —
; At cost 25.0 177.8 58.8 261.6
+ Final dividend ofUEl.O Cents pe. sra;e At professional valuation
{2002: nil) proposa after the . — 2003 12.0 — _ 12.0
balance sheet daiz . 4.5 L — v
‘ oy ‘ ‘ 37.0 177.8 58.8 2736 ==
‘The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not
been recogniz=d as a lizbility at the balance shee: date (a) Leased machinery and equipment The Group leases machinery
} and equipment under a number of finance lease arrangements.
'8 EARNINGS PER SHARE  The calcutations of basic and diluied At the end of each of the leases the Group has the option to

tearnings per share are based on the Group's profit attributable to purchase the equipment at a beneficial price. At 31st March 2003,
-shareholders of U5$40.& million (2002:US311.2 million). the net book value of tangible assets held under finance leases

‘ amounted to US$0.3 million (2002: USS$0.5 million).
‘The basic earnings per sharz is based on the weighted avarage of

:225.5 million (2€02: 225.3 million) ordinary sharzs in issue during
tthe year. The diluted earnings per share is based ¢n 225.5 mitlion
1(2002: 225.3 million) ordinary shares which is the weighted
;average number of ordiaary shares in issue durirg the year. There
were no potential dilutive- ordinary shares in existence for both
'years presented. ‘

(b) Security The net book value of tangible assets pledged as
security for borrowings at 31st March 2003 amounted to US$2.5
million (2002: US$2.3 million).
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9  TANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)  Land and buildings comprise: 11 DEFERRED TAXATION The deferred tax assets and liabilities and
the deferred tax account movements for the years ended 31st
Freehold land and March 2002 and 31st March 2003 are attributable to the
buildings and Short-term following items:
long-term Jeasehold leasehold 9 :
buildings buildings Total
US$ miltion Us$ million US$ miltion Credited/
(charged)
Cost or valuation ist April toincome  31st March
At 1st April 2002 10.5 26.4 36.9 2002 statement 2003
Additions 0.1 — 0.1 US$ million USs million 1SS million
Revaluation {0.9) — (0.9)
Disposals — (1.6) (1.6) Deferred tax assets
Effect of changes in exchange rate 2.3 0.2 25 Provisions 05 0.4) 0.1
March o 5 Tax losses carried forward 1.6 (0.6) 1.0
AL 315t March 2003 12 240 37.0 Other deductible temporary differences 26 02 28
Accumulated depreciation 47 ©8) 39
At 15t April 2002 1.0 14.9 15.9 ’ ’ ’
;har?e fpr the year 0.5 14 1'3 Deferred tax liabilities
'eva uation (14) - (1.4) Accelerated tax depreciation (1.6) 08 0.8}
Disposals — (0.8} (0.8)
Effect of changes in exchange rate 0.8 — 0.8 Net deferred tax assets 3.1 — 34
At 31st March 2003 0.9 15.5 16.4
Net book value at 31st March 2003 1.1 9.5 20.6 Charged to
other Credited/
Net book value at 31st March 2002 9.5 ns 210 properties (charged)
} Tst April revaluation to income 31st March
Costor V§luation of tangible 2001 reserve statement 2002
assets is analysed as follows: US$ million USss million USs million  US$ million
At cost —_ 25.0 25.0 Deferred tax assets
At professional valuation - 2003 12.0 — 12.0 Provisions 06 — (0.1 0.5
Tax losses carried forward 1.7 — 1) 1.6
120 250 370 Other deductible
Net book value of land and temporary differences 2.5 — 0.1 26
buildings comprises: 48 — ©.1) 47
Hong Kong Deferred tax liabilities
Long-term leasehold buildings Accelerated tax
{not less than 50 years) 1.5 — 1.5 depreciation (1.7} — 0.1 (1.6)
Asset revaluation (0.4) 04 — —
Overseas
Freehold land and buildings 9.6 — 9.6 21 04 01 (1.6)
Short-term leasehold buildings — 9.5 9.5 Net deferred tax assets 27 04 . 37
) 9.6 9.5 194
Net book value of revalued fand Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the taxes relate
and buildings had the assets h fiscal hority. The followi h :
been carried at cost less to the same fiscat autnority. Ihe toliowing amounts are shown in
accurnulated depreciation 6.4 — 6.4 the consolidated balance sheet:
2003 2002
The Group's freehold and long-term leasehold land and buildings US$ million Uss million
were last revalued by independent valuers as at 31st March 2003,
. Deferred tax assets 39 43
on an open market value bass. Deferred tax liabilities ©.8) (1.2)
3.1 31
10 LEASEHOLD LAND PAYMENTS
2003 2002 Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax Josses carried forward
Note Uss$ million USS million o X
to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit through
Net book value at st April 3.1 70 future taxable profits is probable. Deferred tax assets of US$63.2
Disposals (©.1) B8 million (2002: US$ 80.3 million) arising from unused tax losses of
Amortization 2 0.1) (0.1) i ) i h b
Impairment charges 3 ©.2) _ US$213.5 million (2001: US$255.4 million} have not been
recognized at the end of the year.
Net book value at 31st March 27 33

Leasehoid fand payments in respect of:
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12 INVESTMENTS

The majority of the Group’s sales are on letter of credit and on
open credit with varying terms of 30 to 90 days. Certain open

2003 2002 credit sales are covered by credit insurance or bank guarantees.
US4 million Uss million
i) Associatec 16 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Share of nei tangible assats 0.1 03
) i 2003 2002
i) Otherinvestrrents Note Us$ million USS million
Unlisted investment:, at cost 0.4 0.1
0.2 T 04 Trade creditors 59.5 76.3
Other creditors and accruals 11.9 1107
Interest rates swaps 22 - 039
13 STOCKS 171.4 187.9
2003 2002 _ ) , . '
ussmillion ~ USS miltion An aging analysis of trade creditars by transaction date is as
- T — follows:
Telecommunicaitan and efectrenic products
Raw materials 139 18.0
Work in progress 4.6 18 2_0_03 ?902
Finished goos 65.5 746 Uss miltion USS mitlion
84.0 944 0-30 days 287 367
31-60 days 115 20.5
61-90 days 1.9 11.0
Stocks carried at net reaiizable value at 31st March 2003 >90 days 4 &
amounted to US$16.2 million (2002: JS$15.3 million). Total 59.5 763
14 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
17 BORROWINGS
2003 2002
Uss miltion Uss million 2003 2002
US$ million USS million
Land and buildings
Hong Kong - 47 Bank loans, overdrafts and finance lease obligations
Qverseas ' B 3.0 19.8
Repayable by instaiments, any ane of which is
3.0 245
due for repayment after five years:
) Secured bank loans 1.0 10
+ The assets hava been written down 1o their est:mated Repayable by instalments, all of which are
. recoverable ainounts. due for repayment within five years:
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts — 93.0
' Secured bank loans 14 13
) .
! 15 DEBTORS ARD PREPAYMENTS Obligations under finance leases (Note) 0.3 0.5
: 263 2002 17 948
Note US$ mil'ion U3$ miflion
Less : amounts due within one year included
tTrade debtors (Net =f provisior: ior under current liabilities:
" doubtful debts of U5$5.8 miilion Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts — (30.2)
{2002: US$7.2 mision)) 1250 1289 Secured bank loans (04} (03)
‘Other debtors and pregayments 15.1 34,1 Obligations under finance leases (Note) {0.1) 0.1)
Pension assets 18 1.3 1.8
Forward foreign exchange contracts 22 — 05 (05) 306)
1399 1653 22 652
Bank loans, overdrafts and finance lease
. ) ) . ) . obligations are repayahle as follows:
An aging analysis of net trade debtors by transaction cate is as Between one and two years 0.5 63.2
foltows: Between two and five years 0.7 1.0
: In more than five years 1.0 1.0
' 2003 2002
UsS milfion Us¢ miikon 22 65.2
0-30 days ' 545 753
31-60 days 41.6 36 Note:
61-90 days 12,2 86 The amounts are net of future finance charges of US$0.1 million (2002: USS0.T millian).
>90 days 16.7 1n4
1285

Total ‘ 123.
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17 BORROWINGS (continued)  Details of the bank joans and
overdrafts are as follows:

2003 2002
US$ million Uss million
United States dollars
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts at
an average floating rate of 5.8% in 2002,
after taking into account of interest rate swaps — 930
Euros
Secured bank loans at an average fixed
interest rate of 6.0% (2002:6.7%) 24 23
24 953

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 PROVISIONS

Employee

compensated

Defective  Restructuring leave
goods returns costs  entitlements Total

US$ million US$ million US$ million US$ millien

At 1st April 2002 330 46 15 391

Effect of changes in

exchange rate — 0.1 — 01
Additional provisions 40.1 —_ 1.3 414
Unused amounts reversed (5.8) 0.3} — 6.1}

18 PENSION SCHEMES The Group operated a defined benefit
scheme and a defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong. The
defined contribution scheme operated in Hong Kong complied
with the requirements under the Mandatory Provident Fund
{("MPF") Ordinance. For the defined contribution schemes
operated for overseas employees and Hong Kong employees
under the MPF Ordinance, the retirement benefit cost expensed
in the income statement amounted to US$1.4 million (2002:
US$1.2 million) and US$0.1 mitlion (2002: USSQ.1 million)
respectively. For the defined benefit scheme (“the Scheme”)
operated for Hong Kong employees, contributions made by the
Group during the year were calculated based on advice from
Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited ("Watson Wyatt"), independent
actuaries and consultants. The Scheme is valued annualfy. The
latest actuarial valuation was completed by Watson Wyatt as at
31st March 2003 using the projected unit credit method.

For the defined benefit scheme, the amounts recognized in the
balance sheet are as follows:

Charged to income

statement 343 {03) 13 353
Utilized during the year (30.7) (2.6) (0.8) (34.1)
At 315t March 2003 36.6 1.8 20 40.4

Defective goods returns The Group undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily in accordance with the
terms of the sale. A provision is recognized for expected return
claims, which included cost of repairing or replacing defective
goods, loss of margin and cost of materials scrapped, based on
past experience of the level of repairs and returns.

Restructuring costs  Restructuring costs include the costs of
terminating employees and other closure costs relating to the
cessation or streamlining of business activities arising from the
restructuring plan launched in March 2001, Details of the plan
have been provided in the annual financial statements for the
year ended 31st March 2001.

20 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

2003 2002 .
Note  US$milion  USsmilion  onarecapital
Fair value of Scheme assets 8.7 1.5 2003 2002
Present value of funded defined USs$ million US$ million
benefit obligations (11.4) (10.1)
Unrecognized actuarial gains 4.5 04 Authorized
Assets recognized in the balance sheet 15 1.8 18
Ordinary shares:
The amounts recognized in the income 400,000,000 (2002 : 400,000,000)
statement are as follows: of US$0.05 each 20.0 200
Current service cost 1. 1.4
Interest cost 0.7 0.9
Expected return on plan assets (0.8) {1.0) 2003 2002
Expenses recognized in the income statement” 2 1.0 13 Number of shares Us$ million USS mitlion
The actual return on plan assets fssued and fully paid
was as follows:
Expected return on plan assets 0.8 1.0 Ordinary shares of
Actuarial losses on plan assets (2.0) (1.4) US$0.65 each:
Actual return on plan assets (1.2) (0.4) Beginning of year
and end of year 225,527,133 1.3 1.3
Movement in the assets recognized in the
balance sheet:
At Tst April 1.8 2.1 h .
Expenses recognized in the income statement” (1.0) (1.3) Share options
Contributions paid 1.0 10 The 1991 Scheme  Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted
At 315t March 1.8 18 on 24th September 1991 (the “1991 Scheme”), the directors may,
— - ) at their discretion, at any time during the ten years from the date
The principal actuarial assumptions used f [ of th Sch S [ s of th
for accounting purposes were: of approval of the 1991 Scheme, invite employees of the
Discount rate 5.5% 7.0% Company and subsidiaries of the Group, including directers, to
Expected return on plan assets 7.0% 7.0%

Future salary increases

take up share options of the Company for incentive purposes.
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20. SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (contnued)

The maximurn number of shares on which options may be
granted may not excead.10% of the issued shere capitaf of the
Company from time o time. The maximum number of sharas in
respect of which opt ans may te granted undzr the 1991 5cheme
to any one participant (including shares issued and issuable to
him under ali the options previously granted to him) is .imited to
25% of the maximurr aggregate number of shares of the
Company subject 1o the 1991 Schema. The offer of a grant of
options may be accepred within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon paymenit of a nominal consideration of H£$1.0 in total by
the grantee.The exercise price in relaiion to each option offer

~ shall be determjned Ly the directors at their absolute discretion,
but in any event shall 1ot be less than the greazer of (i) 80% of
the average of the official closing price of the shares on the

" London Stock Exchange plc and The Stock Exchange of Horg

Kong Limited for the five trading days immediately preceding the
relevant offer date and (ii) the nominal value of the shares. The
terms of the 1991 Scheme provide that an option may be
exercised at any time during the periocd beginning with the
commencement date (being the first anniversary of the date of
grant of the option) and ending with the date which is 10 years
after the date of grant of the option and in the first 48 months
following the commencement date, a grantee may only exercise
to the extent of 25% of shares comprised in the options granted
tohim in any 12 month period. The 1991 Scheme expired on 23rd
September 2001. Options granted and not yet exercised under
the 1991 Scheme will continue to remain effective.

As at 31st March 2003, all options granted pursuant to the 1991
Scheme have lapsed. The movements in the number of share
options under the 1991 Scheme during the year were as follows:

Number of Number of Number of

Balance in share options share options share optiens Balancein

: issue at granted exercised lapsed/cancelled issue at

~ Date of grant Exwrcise price Exercisable period 1st April 2002 during the year during the year during the year 315t March 2003

1st May 1998 5829 15t May 1998 190,000 — — 1190,000) —

ta 30th April 2008

17th December 1953 Uss2.3 17th December 1399 80,000 — — (80,000) -
to 16th Decerbar 2009

270,090 — — (270,000) —

‘The 2001 Scheme . Pursuans to the share option scneme adopted
on 10th August 2001 (the "2001 Scheme”), the directors are
authorized, at eay time during the 10 y=2ars from the date of
‘approval of the 2001 Scheme, to grant options to <ertain
employees of tae Company and subsidiaries of the Group,
including executive directcrs (but excluding non-executive
directors) to subscribe for <hares in the Company at prices to oe
determined by the directors in accordance with the terms of the
2001 Scheme. On 1st September 2001, Chapter 17 of the Ruies
Governing the Listing of Securities on Tae Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Lizsting Rules”) was amanded whereby if
the Company wishes to grant options under the 2001 Scheme on
or after 1st September 20017, it must coraply witn the new
requirements set aut therein.

Rursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company can issue opticns so
that number of shares that midy be issued upon exrcise of all
gptions to be cmnted under gl the schemes does riot in.aggregate
exceed 10% ofth»= relevart class of shares in issue from timeto
tlvmeAThe Compar)g may renew this limit at any time, subject to
shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular. The Corpany
may also seek separate shareholders’ appioval for grenting options
beyond the 10% lirnit to eHgIble employesas specifically identified
by the Company, subject tc sh wreholders’ approval ard the issue of
acircular. The Company canis sue options so that shares to be
|ssued upon exercise of all outstanding options does not exceed -
30% of the relevant class of shares ir. issue from time to time. The
maximum entitle nant for any ane efigible employee is that the
total number of shares issuad and to be issued upon 2xercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12-month period up to
the date of the lasi grant does not exceed 1% of the relevant <lass

of shares in issue. The Company can grant further options in excess
of this limit, subject to shareholders’approval (with that eligible
employee and his associates abstaining from voting) and the issue
of a circular. The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1.0 in total by the grantee.The 2001 Scheme
has a life of 10 years and will expire on 9th August 2011,

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the subscription price payable for
each share under the 2001 Scheme shall be at least the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; and {ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the par value of the shares.The closing price of the
Company's shares traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited respectively on 25th February 2002 (being the day
immediately before the date on which options were granted or
deemed to be granted) was HK$9.7 and on 9th July 2002 (being
the day immediately before the date on which options were
granted or deemed to be granted} was HK$8.55.

The directors are of the view that value of options granted during
the period depends on a number of variables which are either
difficult to ascertain or can only be ascertained subject to a
number of theoretical basis and speculative assumptions.
Accordingly, the directors believed that any calculation of the
value of options will not be meaningful and may be misleading
to shareholders in the circumstances.
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20. SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (continued)
As at 31st March 2003, the number of shares issuable under the
options granted pursuant to the 2001 Scheme was 17,150,000,

Notes to the Financial Statements

which represented approximately 7.6% of the issued share capital
of the Company.The movements in the number of share options
under the 2001 Scheme during the year were as follows:

Number of Number of Number of

Balance in share options share options share options Balance in

issue at granted exercised lapsed/cancelled issue at

Date of grant (Note 1) Exercise price Exercisable period (Note 2) 1st April 2002 during the year during the year during the year 315t March 2003

26th February 2002 HK$10.2 26th February 2002 18,535,000 — — (3,105,000) 15,430,000
to 26th March 2002 to 25th March 2012

10th July 2002 HK$8.71 10th July 2002 — 2,125,000 — (405,000) 1,720,000
to 8th August 2002 to 7th August 2012

18,535,000 2,125,000 — {3,510,000) 17,150,000

Note 1: Due to the large number of employees participating in the 2001 Scheme,
the information can only be shown within a reasonable range in this
report. For options granted to emplayees, the options were granted during
the underlying periods for acceptance of the offer of such options by the
employees concerned.

Note 2: As one of the conditians of grant, the employees concerned agreed with
the Company that the options shall not be exercisable within the period of
36 months from the date on which such options were granted or deemed
to be granted and accepted and shall not be exercisable after 60 months
from the date on which such options were granted or deemed to be
granted and accepted.

HomeRelay Plan  Pursuant to the stock option plan adopted by
HomeRelay Communications, Inc. ("HomeRelay” formerly known
as Unbound Communications, Inc.) in August 2000 (the
“HomeRelay Plan”), the directors of HomeRelay may grant options
to the employees of HomeRelay up to 10% of HomeRelay's
common stock in issue from time to time for incentive purposes.
Options for common stock may be incentive stock options or
non-statutory stock options, A committee designated by the
directors of HomeRelay may fix the terms and vesting of all stock
options; however, in no event will the contractual term exceed 10
years. Unless specified otherwise, stock options vest 25% one
year from the grant date and the remaining 75% vest in
successive equal semi-annual instalments over the succeeding

three year period until the stock options are fully vested. The
HomeRelay Plan has a life of 10 years and will expire on
29th August 2010,

No stock option may be granted to any employee if it would
result in the total amount of stock option to be issued or already
issued to him under the HomeRelay Plan exceeding 25% of the
maximum aggregate amount of stock subject to the HomeRelay
Plan.The exercise price under the HomeRelay Plan will be as
follows: (i) incentive stock options — an amount equal to not
less than 100% of the Fair Market Value (as defined in the
HomeRelay Plan) of the stock at the date of grant; (ii} non-
statutory stock options — an amount equal to not less than 85%
of the Fair Market Value of the stock at the date of grant; and (iii)
incentive stock options to 10% (as defined in the HomeRelay
Plan} — an amount equal to not less than 110% of the Fair
Market Value of the stock at the date of grant.

As at 31st March 2003, the number of shares issuable under the
stock options granted pursuant to the HomeRelay Plan was
705,475, which represented approximately 8.8% of the issued share
capital of HomeRelay. The movements in the number of stock
options under the HomeRelay Plan during the year were as follows:

Number of Number of Number of
Balance in share optiens share options share options Bafance in
Weighted average issue at granted exercised lapsed/cancelled issue at
Date of grant (Note 1) exercise price Exercisable period 1st Aprii 2002 during the year during the year during the year 31st March 2003
1st September 2000 ussi.o 1st September 2600 705,475 — — — 705,475
to 22nd February 2001 to 21st February 2011

Note 11 The stock options were granted to the employees concerned during the
said period and the information can only be shown within a reasonable
range in this report.

Warrants Pursuant to a warrant instrument dated 19th January
2000 issued by the Company to AT&T Corp. ("AT&T") as part of a
trademark licence agreement between the Company and AT&T
pursuant to which AT&T granted the Company the exclusive right
to use the AT&T brand for 10 years in connection with the
manufacture and sale of wireless telephones and accessories in
the United States and Canada, the Company granted AT&T
warrants carrying rights to subscribe for 3,000,000 shares in the

Company at a subscription price of HK$20.0 per share on or
before 18th January 2012.

Pursuant to & Revised AT&T Brand License Agreement dated

24th January 2002, the subscription price of these warrants was
revised to HK$8.43 (being the lower of the initial subscription price
of HK$20.0 and the average of the closing price of the shares of the
Company as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five (5} dealing days immediately preceding " 5th July 2002).

No warrants have been exercised since the date of grant.
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21 RESERVE: °

Group Company
2993 2002 2003 2002
MNote USS million  USS million 1SS millien  U9% million
Share premium 74.3 743 743 743
Other properties
revaluation resarve 6.8 6.6 — —
Revenue reserve 419 42 46.3 36.6
Exchange reserv: 6.8) 6.6) 1.2} (1.2)
Hedging reserve — {0.4) — —
115.2 78.1 119.4 109.7
An analysis of movements
in reserves is s=t
out below:
Share premium
Brought forward 74.3 74.2 74.3 74.2
Placing of shares — 0.1 —_— 0.1
Carried forward 74.3 743 74.3 743
Other properties
revaluation reserve
Brought forward 6.6 10.6 — —
Disposal of prope “ies
previousty reva'ued {0.3) (2.8) — —
Deferred tax reversad
upon disposal of &
property previcusly
revalued — 04 -— —
\ Surplus/(deficit) arising
on revaluation ¢”
other properties - 9 0.5 (1.6} -— —
© Carried forward ' 6.8 6.6 — -
| Revenue reserve
. Brought forward 4 (9.8) 36.6 353
1 Profit attributable ta |
. shareholders 40.8 1.2 13.1 13
' Dividends 7 (3.4) — (3.4) —
- Disposal of propert’2s.
~ previously revalued 0.3 28 — —
' Carried forward a1e 42 46.3 366
I
" Exchange reserve
‘Brought forward (6.6) 6.4) (1.2) (1.2}
‘Exchange translatior "
differences {0.2) 0.2) —_— —
iCarried forward (6.8) 6.6) (1.2) (1.2}
‘Hedging reserve
Brought forward (0.4) 0.3 — —
Transfer to income
statement 2 0.4 (0.3) — —
Fair value losses aris g,
during the year — (0.4) — —
Carried forward — (0.4) — —

Reserves of the company available for distribution to
shareholders amaounted to J5$46.3 million (2002:US$36.6
million).

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  The Group enters into foreign
exchange contracts and interest rate swaps to hadge certain
exposures on fluctuations of foreign currency exchange rates end
interest rates resnectively. Tha Groua doas not use derivative
financial instrumients for speculative purposes.

Creditrisk  Financial assets which potentially subject the Group
to credit risk consist principally of cash, short-term deposits and
trade receivables. The Group’s cash equivalents and short-term
deposits are placed with major financial institutions. Trade
receivables are presented net of the allowance for doubtful
receivables. Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited
due to the farge number of customers comprising the Group's
customer base and their dispersion across different industries
and geographical areas. Accordingly, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. In addition, credit risks are mitigated
by the use of insurance plans.

The Group manages these risks by monitoring credit ratings and
limiting the aggregate risk to any individual counterparty.

Foreign exchange risk  The Group enters into foreign exchange
contracts in order to manage its exposure to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates on specific transactions. Foreign
exchange contracts are matched with anticipated future cash
flows in foreign currencies, primarily from sales.

Interest rate risk  The Group's income and operating cash flows
are affected by the change in market interest rates in relation to
its interest-bearing loans. The Group uses interest rate swaps as
cash flow hedges of future interest payments to convert certain
borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates.

Fairvalues The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

Derivative financial instruments  Forward foreign exchange
contracts and interest rate swaps contracts were designated as
cash flow hedges and remeasured to fair values.

The net fair values of derivative financial instruments at 31st
March designated for cash flow hedges were as follows:

2003 2002
Positive  Negative Positive  Negative
fairvalue  fairvalue fair value fair value
Note  USS$ million USS million  US$ million  US$ million
Forward foreign
exchange contracts 15 - — 0.5 -
Interest rate swaps 16 — — — (0.9)
— — 0.5 (0.9)

Forward foreign exchange contracts  The net fair value gains at 31st
March 2003 on open forward foreign exchange contracts which
hedge anticipated future foreign currency sales and purchases will
be transferred from the hedging reserve to the consclidated income
statement when the forecasted sales and purchases occur, at various
dates between 1 month to 6 months from the balance sheet date.

At 31st March 2003, there were no outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts (2002: contract amount of US$22.8 million).
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate swaps At 37st March 2003, there were no
outstanding interest rate swaps (2002: fixed interest rate relating
to interest rate swaps vary from 6.7% to 7.0% and notional
principal amounts of US$40.0 million).

Fair values The fair value of debtors, bank balances, creditors and
accruals and bank overdrafts approximate their carrying amounts
due to the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.
The fair value of term loans and obligations under finance leases
is estimated using the expected future payments discounted at
market interest rates.

* The weighted average effective interest rate on short term bank deposits was
1.2% (2002: 1.8%) and these deposits have average maturity of 1 day.

Currency profile  The currency profile of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities, before taking account of hedging
transactions, is summarized as follows:

2003 2002
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Us$ million  US$ million  USS million  USS mitlion
Currency:
United States Dollar 159.5 47.2 165.6 194.5
Euro 211 53 143 147
United Kingdom
Sterling 5.0 2.6 7.5 16
Hong Kong Dollar 3.5 239 25 281
Dutch Guilder — — 0.1 0.1
Chinese Renminbi 0.7 8.3 15 6.9
Swiss Franc — — 01 02
Others 3.8 5.7 0.3 4.4
193.6 93.0 192.5 2505
23 COMMITMENTS
2003 2002
USS million US$ million
(i) Capital commitments for property,
plant and equipment
Authorized but not contracted for 17.0 1.8
Contractad but not provided for 3.2 24
20.2 14.2
(i) Operating lease commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:
Land and buildings
[n one year or fess 6.9 109
Between one and two years 6.1 7.3
Between two and five years 11.9 124
In more than five years 3.5 59
284 36.5

The Group has entered into agreements with an independent
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four separate leases which expire in 2003, 2004, 2022 and 2029
respectively. The lease expiring in 2029 has a non-caricellable
period of eight years which expires in 2007, At the erd of this
non-cancellable period, the lease can only be cancelied on six
months’ notice with a penalty eguivalent to three months' rentals.
All other buildings have lease terms which can be cancelled upon
three to six months’ notice with penalties equivalent to three to
twelve months' rentals. The operating lease commitments above
include total commitments over the non-canceliable period of
the lease terms.

In January 1996, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party in the PRC whereby the PRC party will
construct in phases and lease to the Group a new production
facility in Liaobu, Dongguan. Under a fifty year lease agreement,
the Group will rent the first and second phases of the facility for
non-cancellable periods of six and eight years after completion
respectively. The Group also has an option to purchase each
phase of the production facility at any time within four and a half
years after the completion of each phase. The first phase became
fully operational in April 1998 and the completed production
facility of the second phase became operational in October 2007.
The operating lease commitments above include tcta!
commitments over the non-canceilable period of the lease terms.

The operating lease commitments in respect of the agreements
with the above independent third party in the PRC reflect total
commitments over the non-cancellable period of the lease terms.

Under a Brand License Agreement, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group is required to make royalty payments to AT&T Corp.,
calculated as a percentage of net sales of the relevant categories
of products, subject to certain minimum aggregate royalty
payments.The percentage of net sales payable varies over time
and between products. There is no maximum royalty payment.
The aggregate minimum royalty payments as at 3ist March 2003
amount to US$90.9 million (2002: US$94.6 million) and the
annual payment increases on a sliding scale from US$10.5 million
for the year ended 31st March 2004 to US$12.6 million for the
year ending 31st March 2010, when the agreement expires. The
subsidiary can renew the agreement for two additional five year
terms provided certain performance requirement are achieved.

24 (CONTINGENT LIABILITIES The directors have been advised that
certain accusations of infringements of patents, trademarks and
tradenames have been lodged against the Company and its
subsidiaries. In the opinion of legal counsel, it is too early to
evaluate the likelihood of an unfavourable result. The directors
are of the opinion that even if the accusations are found to be
valid, there will be no material adverse effect on the financial
position of the Group.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation arising
in the ordinary course of their respective businesses. Having
reviewed cutstanding claims and taking into account legal advice
received, the directars are of the opinion that even if the claims
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25 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31ST MARCH

: Shareholders’ funds

2003 2002
Note Uss million US3 mitlion
Non-current assets
Subsidiaries 103.3 11033
Current assets B
Amounts due from subsidiaries (i 259.6 2235
Taxation recoverable 0.1 —
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 a2
259.8 2237
Current liabilities
- Amounts due to subsidiaries (i (232.7) 204.1)
© Creditors and provisions (1.7) (1.8)
. Taxation payable —_ 1)
232.4) 1206.0)
Net assets 130.7 1210
" Capital and reseryes
+ Share capital 20 13 113
Reserves 21 1164 109.7
130.7 121.0

(i) The amounts due from / (to} subsidizries have no fixed t2'ms of repayment.
Most of the amounts due ara interest free.

.26 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  Details of the Company’s interests in
'those subsidiaries which materially affect the rasults or assers of
ithe Group as at 31st March 2003 are set out below:

Name of subsidiary

Percentage

. of interest

Fully paid issued held by
shere capital the Group.

Principal activity

Incarporated and cpesating
in Hong Kong:

VTech Communicaticas
Limited

VTech Blectronics Limited

VTech Telecommunications
Limited

Perseus Investments
Limited

Valentia Investment
i Limited

Incorporated and operaiing
1in France:

VTech Electronics
Europe SA,

/néorporated and operating
in Germany:

VTech Electronics
Europe GmbH

Ordinzry HKS$1,000
Deerrad HKS5,(:00,000

Ordina+y HK$5,060,000

Ordinary HK$1,000
Defarred HKS5,013,000

Ordlinary HK$1,000
De’erred HK$1,0010

Ordinary HK$ 1,060
Deferred HK$1,000

EURC 3,048,980

EURG 2,600,000

*100

Dasign, manufacture

and sale of
electronic
equipmerit

*100

Design, manufacture

and disiribution of
electronic products

*100

Lresign, manufaciure

and distribution of
telecommunication
products

100 Froperty holding

100 Froperty holding

*100

Sale of elacironiz

products

*100

Sele of electronic

products

Percentage
of interest
Fully paid issued held by

Name of subsidiary share capital the Group  Principal activity

{ncorporated and operating
in Spain:

VTech Electronics EURD 2,322,200 *100  Sale of electronic
Eurape, S.L. (formerly products
known as VTech
Electronics Spain S.L.)

Incorparated and operating
in the United States:

VTech Electronics US522,212,997 *100  Sale of electronic
North America LL.C. products

VTech Communications, tnc.  US$300,000 *100  Sale of

telecommunication
products

VTech innovation L.P. US$110,000,056 *100  Sale of

telecommunication
products

Incorporated and operating
in Canada:

VTech Electronics Canada (81 *100  Sale of electronic
Ltd. products

VTech Telecommunications  Class A C$5,000 *100  Sale of
Canada Ltd. Class B C$185,000 *100 telecommunication

products

Incorporated and operating
in the Netherlands:

VTech Electronics EURO 18,100 *100  Sale of electronic
Europe BV. products

Incorporated and operating
in the United Kingdom:

VTech Electronics GBP 500,000 *100 Sale of electronic
Europe plc products

incorporated n the British
Virgin Istands and
operating in the People’s
Republic of China:

Asian Luck Limited uss1 *100  Manufacture of

* Indirectly held by subsidiary companies

27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

electronic &
telecommunication
products

In the narmal course of

business and on normal commercial terms, the Group undertakes
certain transactions with its associates. None of these

transactions was material to the Group’s results.

With effect from 1st April 2003, the Group leases premises from a
director for HK$250,000 a month, to provide housing for him in
accordance with the terms of his employment contract for 2
years. The premises are 50% owned by the director’s wife and
50% owned by a trust, the beneficiaries of which are the director




VTech in the Last Five Years

Consolidated statement of net assets as at 31st March

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Note USS$ million Us$ million Uss million US$ million Us$ million
Non-current assets
Tangible assets () 100.6 165.9 959 58.0 48.0
Leasehold fand payments (ify 7.1 7.1 7.0 3.1 2.7
Negative goodwill — (32.2) — — —
Gther non-current assets 56 6.1 45 47 4.1
1133 146.9 107.4 65.8 54.8
Current assets
Stocks 91.9 256.8 187.5 94.4 84.0
Debtors and prepayments (i) 148.0 2445 255.6 165.3 13%.9
Cash and cash equivalents 97.3 79.6 56.2 63.3 704
Other current assets 2.2 31 340 275 9.5
3394 584.0 5333 350.5 3038
Current fiabilities (iif), (iv) & (v) (154.6) (262.0) (421.4} {(259.7) (227.3)
Net current assets 1848 3220 119 90.8 76.5
Total assets less current liabilities 2981 468.9 2193 156.6 131.3
Long-term liabilities
Borrowings (14.1) (169.7) (136.9) 65.2) (2.2}
Deferred tax liabilities (1.7} (1.4) (1.3) (1.2) 0.8)
(15.8) (1711) (138.2) (66.4) (3.0)
Minority interest ©.7) (08) 0.9) 0.8) 0.8)
Net assets/shareholders funds 2816 2970 80.2 89.4 127.5
(i) Tangible assets have been adjusted in accordance
with 1AS 40 by the following amounts: (8.5} 6.9) 6.9} — —
(i) Leasehold land payments have been adjusted in accordance with IAS
40 by the following amounts: 7.4 7.1 7.0 — —
(iii) Debtors and prepayments and current liabilities have been adjusted
to include pension assets in accordance with 1AS 19 (revised 1998)
by the following amaunts:
Oebtors and prepayments 1.4 — — — —
Current fiabilities (08) — — — —
(V) Current liabilities have been adjusted to exclude the final dividend proposed
in accordance with 1AS 10 (revised 1999) by the following amounts: 26.5 — — — —

{v)  Current liabilities have been adjusted to refiect the fair value of the derivative

financial instruments in accordance with IAS 39: — — 03 — -




. VTechin the Last Five Years

: : h Consolidated income statement for the years ended 31st March

| 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
: Note US$ million Us$ million Uss$ million US$ million uss$ million
. Revenue 960.6 1,0459 1,334.9 9398 866.5
\ Prafit/(loss) from ordinary activitizs hefore taxation i), (i}, (D) & () 87.3 474 (213.1) 139 58.3
Taxation (5.5) 2.5) (1.8) 2.6) (17.4)
Profit/(loss) from ardinary activities after taxation 824 449 (214.9) 1.3 40.9
Minority interes: 0.1) (0.1) 0.1) 0.1) (0.1)
Profit/(loss) attributable to shaieholders 823 44.8 (215.0} 1.2 40.8
. Earnings/(loss) per share (US cunits) Q) & {v) 38.6 210 (96.7) 5.0 18.1
j» (i)  Depreciaticn bn moulds for new products that ultimately go into production
for the yea~- ended 315t March 1996 to 315t March 199¢ has now besn
reclassified and included within cost of sales instead of within research and
developmert expenses by ite following amounts: 75 7.8 — — —
{iy  Administrative and other operating expenses have been adjusted
for the effect of IAS 19 (revised 1998) hy the following ercunts: 06 — — — —
(ifi)  Administrative-and other opierating expenses have been z¢justed far the
effect of 1AS 40 by the following amounts: 0.4) 0.2} - — -—

(v} The earning. per share for the year ended 315t March 1999 has been adjusted for the scrip dividend issued on 8th February 2000.

The earnings Dar share for the year enced 315t March 1999 has been adjusted for the effect of AS 19 (revised 1998) and 1AS 40 on administrative and other operating expenses
set out in {ii) & (iil) above.

(vi} Loss from orcinary activities hafore taxation for the year ended 31st Marct 2001 inctuded US$110.4 million of restructuring and impairment charges in respective of the Group's

restructuring plan launched in March 2001, Details of the plan has bzen provided in the Annual Report 2001.
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Ay DOCUMENT IS IMPURTARNT ARD KREQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

-

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no resf)onsibility for the contents of this document, makes
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

For shareholders of the Company whose shares in the Company are registered on the UK branch register, if
you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this document or as to the action to be taken, you should consult a
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other
independent professional adviser authorised under the UK Financial Services Act 1986 immediately.

For shareholders of the Company whose shares in the Company are registered on the Hong Kong branch
register, if you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this document or as to the action to be taken, you should
consult a stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional
accountant or other professional adviser immediately.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in VTech Holdings Limited, you should at once hand this
document, together with the enclosed form of proxy, to the purchaser or other transferee or to the bank,
stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser
or transferee.

L2

o

gs Limited =

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) o
2

GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE AND ISSUE SHARES
AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A letter from the Chairman of VTech Holdings Limited is set out on pages 3 to 8 (inclusive) of this
document. A notice convening the annual general meeting of VTech Holdings Limited to be held at Jade
Room, 6th Floor, The Marco Polo Hongkong Hotel, Harbour City, 3 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong at 3:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on 6th August 2003 is set out on pages 9 to 11 (inclusive) of this
document.

Whether or not you are able to attend the said meeting, you are requested to complete and return the
enclosed form of proxy in accordance with the instructions thereon as soon as possible and in any event not
less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting. Completion and return of the form of
proxy shall not preclude you from attending and voting at the meeting or any adjourned meeting if you so
wish.

4th July 2003
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In this decument, the following expressions have the following meanings unless the context otherwise

requires:

“2001 Share Option
Scheme”

“AGM”

“AGM Notice”

“Board”
“Companies Act”

“Company”

“Directors”

“Group”

“Hong Kong™

“Hong Kong branch
regisier”

“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Listing Rulzss”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“London Stock Exchange”
“Share(s)”

“Shareholders™

the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 10th August 2001

the annual general meeting of the Company convened to be held on
Wednesday, 6th August 2003 at 3:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time)

nozice of the AGM, which is set out on pages 9 to 11 (inclusive) of this
document

the board of Directors from time to time
the UK Companies Act 1985 (as amended)

VTech Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
uncer the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the shares of which are listed on

the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and on the Official List
of the UK Listing Authority

the directors, including the independent non-executive directors, of the
Cornpany from time to time

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China

the register of members held in Hong Kong by Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

4th July 2003, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this
document for the purpose of ascertaining certain information included herein

London Stock Exchange plc

ordinary share{s) of US$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company

holders of Shares




DreINCTIONS

“UKss

“UK branch register”

“UK Listing Rules”

113 HK$ »”

:‘US$”

United Kingdom of England, Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland

the register of members held in the UK by Capita IRG Plc of Bourne House,
34 Beckenham Road, Kent BR3 4TU, DX91750, Beckenham West, United
Kingdom

the rules and regulations made by the UK Listing Authority under Part IV of
the Financial Services Act 1986 as amended from time to time

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
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VTech Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Directors: Registered Office:

Allan WONG Chi Yun (Chairman) Clarendon House

Alberi LEE Wai Kuen (Deputy Chairmanr) Church Street

Paddy LAW Wai Leung (Group Chief Executive Officer) Hamilton HM 11

Raymond CH’IEN Kuo Fung* Bermuda

Williem FUNG Kwok Lun*

Miche={ TIEN Puk Sun* Principal Office in Hong Kong:

Patrick WANG Shui Chung* 23rd Floor
Tai Ping Industrial Centre

* Independent Non-executive Director Block 1, 57 Ting Kok Road
Tat Po, New Territories
Hong Kong

4th July 2003

To the sharenolders and for informatior: onty,
the kolders of warrants
of VIech Holdings Limited

Dear Sir or Madam,

GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES AND TOQO ISSUE SHARES,
AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

INTRODUCTION

At the AGM, notice of which is set out on pages 9 to 11 (inclusive) of this document, resolutions will
be proposed to approve the following:

(i)  the grant to the Directors of a general mandate to repurchase fully paid-up Shares;
(it) the grant to the Direc:ors of a general mandate to allot, issue and otherwise deal with Shares
represanting up to 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue at the date of the resolution; and

(1ti) the grant tc the Directors of a general authority to allot, issue and otherwise deal with Shares of
the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares repurchased under the repurchase mandate.

The purzose of this documer:t is to explain the proposed resolutions.




Ll itk FROM ITHE CHAIRMARN

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

The previous general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 9th August 2002 to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase Shares will expire at the
AGM.

At the AGM, Resolution 6, as set out in the AGM Notice, will be proposed as an ordinary resolution
pursuant to which the Directors will be granted a general and unconditional mandate to exercise all the
powers of the Company to repurchase issued Shares subject to the criteria set out in the resolution. The
authority relates only to repurchases made on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the London Stock
Exchange and otherwise in accordance with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Rules and the UK
Listing Rules. The general mandate covers repurchases made or agreed to be made only during the period
ending on the date of the annual general meeting of the Company next following the AGM, or fifteen
months from the date of the AGM, or until the authority given under Resolution 6 is renewed, revoked, or
varied by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, whichever occurs first. In accordance
with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Rules, the Company is required to send to its shareholders an
explanatory statement containing all the information reasonably necessary to enable the Shareholders to
make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolution to approve the granting of a
mandate to exercise the powers of the Company to purchase its own Shares. This document sets out below
such information, in relation to the mandate to repurchase Shares, as is required to be provided in
accordance with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Rules and the UK Listing Rules.

Share Capital and Maximum Number of Shares that may be Repurchased

The maximum number of Shares that may be repurchased on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or on
another stock exchange pursuant to the mandate will be such number of Shares as represents 10% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the date of the AGM. As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were
in issue an aggregate of 225,527,133 Shares. Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution approving the
mandate to repurchase Shares and on the basis that no Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the AGM,
the Company would be permitted under the repurchase mandate to repurchase a maximum of 22,552,713
Shares. The mandate relates only to repurchases of Shares which are fully paid up.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the total number of options and warrants to subscribe for Shares that
are outstanding is 20,130,000 being equivalent to approximately 8.93% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at that date. If the repurchase of Shares under the currently existing mandate was carried
out in full prior to the AGM and the repurchase of Shares under the new mandate to be passed at the meeting
was also carried out in full following the AGM, the percentage of the total number of options and warrants
to the total issued share capital would increase to approximately 11.16%.

Reasons for Repurchases

While it is not possible to anticipate any specific circumstances in which the Directors might think it
appropriate to repurchase Shares, the Directors believe that an authority to do so would give the Company
additional flexibility that would be beneficial. The Directors have no current intention to repurchase any
Shares.

In reaching a decision as to whether to make any such repurchase, the Directors will take account of
market conditions and the Company’s funding arrangements at the time and whether or not such repurchase
would lead to an enhancement of the net asset value per Share of the Company and/or its earnings per Share.
Shareholders can be assured that the Directors would only make a repurchase in circumstances where they
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consider it 1o be in the best interests of the Company and in circumstances where they consider that the
Shares can be repurcnased on favourable terms after obtaining all necessary consents which may be required
under loan or finance documentazion.

On the basis of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31st March 2003, (being the
date to which the latest published audited consolidated accounts of the Company have been made up) and in
particular the working capital position of the Company at that time and the number of Shares to which the
repurchase mandate relates, the Directors consider that it is likely that there would be a material adverse
impact on the working capital position and the gearing position of the Company in the event that the
repurchase mandate were to be exercised in full during the repurchase period. No repurchases would be
made where such repurchases would have a material adverse impact on the working capital position of the
Company unless the Directors consider that such repurchases were in the best interests of the Company.

Price to be Paid for Repurchases

Under the UK Zisting Rules, the maximum price which may be paid for each of the Shares to be
repurchased is 5% above the middle market quotation of those Shares as derived from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for :ke five dealing days immediately prior to the repurchase. The minimum
price that will be paid for each of the Shares is US$0.05, being the nominal value of the Shares.

Funding of Repurchases

The Company is empowered by its memorandum of association and bye-laws to repurchase its Shares.
Purchases of Shares must be funded out of funds legally available for the purpose in accordance with the
Company’s memorand:am of association and bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda and will be funded by the
resources of the Company. Bermuda law provides that the amount of capital paid in connection with a share
repurchase may only be paid out of either the capital paid up on the relevant Shares or the funds of the
Company that would otherwise be available for dividend or distribution of the proceeds of a fresh issue of
Shares made for ihe purpose. The amount of premium payable on repurchase may only be paid out of the
funds of the Company that would otherwise be available for dividend or distribution or out of the share
premicm account of the Company before the Shares are repurchased. Should the Directors consider it

desirable, they would be able to finance the repurchase out of funds borrowed against any of the above-
mentioned accounts.

Hong Xong Siock Exchange Listing Rules

The reporting requirements contained in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Rules specify that,
inter alia, a listed company shall report all repurchases of its securities to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
by not later than 9:00 a.m. (Hong Kong iime) on the business day following the date of repurchase of any
securities and shall include in its annual report a monthly breakdown of repurchases of securities.

UK Listing Rules

The UK Listing Rules require the Company to notify the Company Announcements Office of the
London Stock Exchangz of any repurchases made by the Company no later than 7: 30 a.m. (London time) on
the business day following the day on which the repurchase took place.
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Directors’ Undertaking

The Directors have undertaken to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to exercise the power of the
Company to make repurchases pursuant to the proposed resolution in accordance with the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Listing Rules and the UK Listing Rules and all applicable Bermuda laws and in accordance with
the regulations set out in the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company.

Directors and Connected Persons

None of the Directors nor, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, any of the associates (as defined in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Rules) of
any of the Directors, have any present intention, in the event that the grant to the Directors of the repurchase
mandate is approved by the shareholders, of selling Shares to the Company.

No persons who are connected persons of the Company have notified the Company that they have a
present intention to sell Shares to the Company, nor have they undertaken not to sell any of the Shares held
by them to the Company in the event that the Company is authorised to make repurchases of Shares.

Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

If, as a result of a share repurchase, a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting capital of the
Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Code”) and, if such increase results in a change of control, may in certain
circumstances give rise to an obligation to make a mandatory offer for the securities of the Company under
Rule 26 of the Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the total issued share capital of the Company was 225,527,133
Shares and Mr. Allan WONG Chi Yun (“Mr. WONG?”) and his associates, the controlling shareholders of
the Company, held an aggregate of 92,976,666 Shares representing approximately 41.23% interest in the
Company. If the repurchase of Shares under the mandate was carried out in full, the shareholding percentage
of Mr. WONG and his associates would increase to approximately 45.81% and would then be obligated to
make a mandatory offer for the securities of the Company under Rule 26 of the Code. However, the
Directors do not propose to exercise the general mandate to repurchase shares to such extent as would, in the
circumstances, cause Mr. WONG and his associates to become obligated to make a mandatory offer under
Rule 26 of the Code.
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Share Prices and Share Repurchase Records

During each of the 12 months preceding the Latest Practicable Date, the highest and lowest traded
prices for Shares on the Hong Keng Stock Exchange were as follows:

Per Share
Highest Lowest
HK$ HK$
2002
July 9.400 6.400
August 8.250 6.500
September 8.100 6.650
October 7.000 5.600
November 8.050 6.050
December 7.100 5.750
2903
January 6.800 5.650
February 5.850 5.100
March 5.350 4.000
April 4.625 4.025
May 5.850 4,500
June 6.900 5.400

During each of the six months preceding the Latest Practicable Date, no Shares were repurchased by
the Corapany.

Status of Repurchased Shares

Uader Bermuda law, any Shares repucchased by the Company will be treated as cancelled and the

issued share capital of the Company, but not the aggregate amount of its authorised share capital, will be
reduced accordingly.

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

The previous genzral mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company

held on 9th Aagust 2002 tc exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with Shares will
expire at the AGM.

Resolution 7 as set out in the AGM Nctice will be proposed as an ordinary resolution to renew a
general and unconditional mandate tc authorise the Directors to allot, issue and deal with further new Shares
representing up to 20% of the aggrsgate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the
date the resolution is passed. As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were in issue an aggregate of
225,527,133 Shares. On the basis that no Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the AGM, the Company
would be allowed to allot, issue and deal with a maximum of 45,105,426 further new Shares. In addition, if
Resolution 7 is passed, authorising the repurchase of Shares by the Company, Resolution 8 set out in the
AGM Natice will be proposed as an ordinary resolution to extend the authority of the Directors to allot,

issue and deal with Shares to include an additional number of Shares equal to the number of Shares
repurchased under the repurchase mandate.




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The authority of the Directors to allot and issue Shares pursuant to Resolutions 7 and 8 shall expire on
the earlier of the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2004, fifteen
months after the date of the AGM, the date of renewal of such authority prior to such time or the date on
which such authority is revoked or varied by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting.
The Directors confirm that there are no pre-emption rights attaching to the Shares and that they have no
present intention of allotting, issuing and dealing with Shares pursuant to the authority that would be vested
in them pursuant to Resolutions 7 and 8 set out in the AGM Notice.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the general mandate to repurchase Shares and the general mandate to allot,
issue and deal with Shares are each in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
Directors recommend that the shareholders of the Company vote in favour of these resolutions at the AGM.
Those Directors who are also shareholders of the Company intend to vote in favour of the resolutions.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The AGM Notice is set out on pages 9 to 11 (inclusive) of this document.

A form of proxy is enclosed with this document for use at the AGM. Whether or not you choose to
attend this meeting, you are requested to complete and return the enclosed form of proxy to 23rd Floor, Tai
Ping Industrial Centre, Block 1, 57 Ting Kok Road, New Territories, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting. Completion of a form of proxy will not preclude
you from attending and voting at the meeting in person if you so wish.

Yours faithfully
Allan WONG Chi Yun
Chairman
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VTech Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of shareholders of VTech Holdings
Limited (the *Company”) will be held at 3:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, 6th August 2003 at
Jade Room, 6th Floor, The Marco Polo Hongkong Hotel, Harbour City, 3 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong in order to consider the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

“THAT the Audited Financial Statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the
year ended 31st March 2003 be received.”

“THAT a final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2003 be declared.”

“THAT the reticing dirsctor(s) pursuant to bye-law 112 of the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws™) be re-electzd.”

“THAT the remuneratior: of the directors of the Company be determined.”

“THAT KPMQG, the retiring auditors who were appointed by the board of directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) in February 2003 to fill the casual vacancy arising by reason of the
fesignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers, being eligible and offering themselves for re-
appointment, be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company to hold office until the

conclusion of the next annual general meeting and that their remuneration be determined by the
Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Resoluticns 6 to 8 will be proposed as ocdinary resolutions of the Company:

6.

“THAT:

(a) subject to the provisions of paragraphs (b) to (d) below, the exercise by the Directors of all
the powers of the Company to repurchase ordinary shares of US$0.05 each in the share
capital of the Company con the London Stock Exchange plc (the “London Stock
Excharge”) and/or The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or on any other stock
exchange on which the shares of the Company may be listed subject to and in accordance
with al! applicable laws and the provisions of, in the manner specified in, the Listing Rules
of the Financial Services Authority in the United Kingdom, the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Hong Kong
Code on Share Renurchases be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares hereby authorised to be repurchased by the
Company pursuant o the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of the
annual general meeting at which this resolution is passed;




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MERETING

(©)

(d)

the maximum price that may be paid for each of the shares to be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above is 5% above the middle market
quotation of those shares as derived from the London Stock Exchange’s Daily Official List
for the five dealing days immediately prior to the date of repurchase of such shares and the
minimum price that may be paid for each of the shares is US$0.05 being the nominal value
of the shares; and

the authority hereby conferred on the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a)
above shall expire on the earlier of (i) the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held in 2004, or (ii) the date falling fifteen months from the date of the
annual general meeting convened by the notice of which this resolution forms part or such
shorter period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by
any applicable laws or the Company’s Bye-laws to be held, or (iii) such authority given
under this resolution being renewed, revoked or varied by ordinary resolution of
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

7.  “THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to the provisions of paragraphs (b) and (c) below, the exercise by the Directors of
all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional authorised and
unissued shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options, including warrants to subscribe for shares and other rights of subscription for or
conversion into shares, which might require the exercise of such powers, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital to be allotted, issued and dealt with by
the Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above, other than
as set out in paragraph (c) below, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the annual general meeting of the
Company at which this resolution is passed and as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
shares following the exercise of options pursuant to the 2001 Share Option Scheme and the
authority conferred on the Directors pursuant to paragraph (a) above shall expire on the
earlier of (i) the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held in
2004, or (ii) fifteen months from the date of the annual general meeting convened by the
notice of which this resolution forms part or such shorter period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required by any applicable laws or its Bve-laws
to be held or (iii) such authority being revoked or varied by ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, save that, in each case, this authority
shall allow the Company before the expiry of this authority to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including warrants to subscribe for shares and other rights of
subscription for or conversion into shares) which would or might require shares to be
allotted and issued after such expiry and the Directors may allot, issue and deal with the
shares in pursuance of such offers, agreements and options as if the authority conferred
hereby had not expired;

— 10 —
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o ? (c) the provisions of paragraph {(b) above shall not apply to the aggregate nominal amount of
share capital allotted and/or issued or agreed to be conditionally or unconditionally issued
and/or allotted by the Directors pursuant to:

a } (i) arightsissuz where shares are offered for a fixed period to shareholders in proportion
- \ to their then holdings of shares on a fixed record date (subject to such exclusions or

i i other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
1 fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the
: L laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or stock exchange in,
i i any territory applicable to the Company); or
\
|

(it) any scrip dividend scheme or similar arrangements implemented in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-laws; or

(iii) any share option scheme of the Company; and

(d) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall be in addition to any other authorisation given to
the Directors.”

- : 8.  “THAT conditional on the passing of Resolution 7 in the notice convening this meeting, the
: general mandate grante¢ to the Directors and for the time being in force to exercise all the
; powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to Resolution 7
: set out in the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition to the
: aggregate rominal amount of the share capital of the Company which may be allotted or agreed
i to be condit:onally or unconditionally allotted by the Directors pursuant to such general mandate
| of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
| repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution 6, provided that
such extended amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue zs at the date of the passing of this resolution.”

‘ By Order of the Board
ey CHANG Yu Wai
- Company Secretary

- | Hong Kong, 27th June 2003

Notes:

|
\
§ I. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
i instead of him. A proxy need not also be a member of the Company. To be valid, a proxy form,

| together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially
ﬁ | certified copy of such power or authority must be deposited at 23rd Floor, Tai Ping Industrial Centre,
=3 | Block 1, 57 Ting Kok Road, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the
P ! time fixed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting. Completion and return of the form of
- 1 proxy will not preclude a member “rom attending and voting in person if the member so wish.
= > 2. The Registers of Members of the Company will be closed from 30th July 2003 to 6th August 2003,
H : both days inclusive, to ascertain shareholder’s rights for the purpose of attending and voting at the said
Ij.; ‘ annual general meeting. During which period, no transfer of shares will be registered.
- :
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VTech Hoidings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liabiliry)

PROXY FORM FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OR
ANY ADJOURNMENT THEREOF

I/We (€}
of
being the registered holder(s) of® shares
of US$0.05 each in the issued share capital of VTech Holdings Limited (the “Company™) hereby appeint'® the

chairman of the meeting (the “Chairman”) or®

of
as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting of the Company
(the “Meeting”) to be held at 3:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, 6th August, 2003 at Jade Room, 6th
Floor, The Marco Polo Hongkong Hotel, Harbour City, 3 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the resolutions set out in the notice convening the Meeting and
at the Meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, to vote for me/us and in my/our name(s) as indicated below in
respect of the said resolutions, and if no such indication is given, as my/our proxy thinks fit.

RESOLUTIONS FOR® AGAINST@
1. To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements and the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31st March

2003.
2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2003.

3. To re-elect the following persons as Directors of the Company:
(i)  Mr. Albert LEE Wai Kuen

(i1) Mr. Paddy LAW Wai Leung

4, To fix the remuneration of the Directors.

5. | To re-appoint KPMG as auditors for the ensuing year and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration.

To grant to the Directors a general mandate to repurchase shares.

To grant to the Directors a general mandate to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of the Company.

8. | To add to the general mandate to be granted to the Directors to allot,
issue and deal with shares of the Company the aggregate nominal
amount of shares repurchased.

Dated this day of 2003 Signature®

NOTES:
1. Full name(s) and address(es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS. The names of all joint holders should be stated.

2. Please insert the number of shares of US$0.05 each registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted this proxy form will be deemed to relate to
all such shares of the Company registered in your name(s).

3. If any proxy other than the Chairman is preferred, strike out *‘the chairman of the meeting or” and insert the name and address of the proxy desired
in the space provided. A proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting in person to represent you.

4. IMPORTANT: If you wish to vote for a resolution, place a “./” in the box marked “FOR™. If you wish to vote against a resolution, place a “,/”
in the box marked “AGAINST". Failure to complete a box will entitle your proxy to cast your vote(s) or abstain at his discretion. Your proxy will
also be entitled to vote or abstain at his discretion on any resolution properly put to the Meeting other than those referred to in the notice
convening the Meeting.

S, This proxy form must be signed by you or your attorney authorised in writing, or in the case of a corporation, must be either under its seal or under
the hand of an officer, attorney or other person authorized to sign the same.

6. In order to be valid, this proxy form, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of such power or authority must be lodged at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 23rd Floor, Tai Ping Industrial Centre,
Block 1, 57 Ting Kok Road, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

7. Any alterations made to this proxy form must be initialled by the person who signs it.
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